
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Wednesday, 10 March 2021.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 

 
 

Thursday, 18 March 2021 at 2.00 pm 
Virtual meeting - This meeting is being held remotely using 

Skype for Business 
 

 
Committee 
Members: 

 
Councillor Ian Stokes, Vice-Chairman of the Council (Chairman) 
Councillor Paul Wood (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Gloria Johnson, Councillor Philip Knowles, Councillor Jacky Smith, Councillor 
Mark Whittington and Councillor Sue Woolley 

 
 

Agenda 

 Virtual Meeting - Joining Arrangements 
Councillors should access the meeting using the link in their calendar. 

Members of the press and public can gain access to the meeting by using the following link: 

Governance and Audit Committee - 18 March 2021 

If you are using a smartphone or tablet it may be necessary to download the Skype for Business app 

before you can enter the meeting; please allow yourself time to do this. If you are using a laptop or 

desktop computer, you should be able to access the meeting via your web browser. 

When you follow the link to the meeting you will enter a virtual lobby; you will be invited into the 

meeting from the lobby just before the meeting begins. Members of the public should not use the 

Chat function in Skype for Business. This is for use by Councillors, who will use it to indicate that 

they would like to speak. 

If you have any questions about how to join the meeting, please e-mail 

democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk. 

Governance and 

Audit Committee 

 

https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/0DZ0WRZ1
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 

 
1.   Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence  

   
2.   Disclosure of interests 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 

meeting. 

 

   
3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2021 (Pages 3 - 9) 

   
4.   Updates from previous meeting 

To note the status of actions raised at the previous meeting.  
(Pages 11 - 12) 

   
5.   Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 

Report of the Council’s Internal Auditors, RSM, presenting the draft Internal 

Audit Plan 2021/22 for approval. 

(Pages 13 - 29) 

   
6.   Internal Audit Progress Report 

Report from the Council’s Internal Auditors, RSM, giving a summary update on  

progress against the Internal Audit Plan 2020/21.  

(Pages 31 - 57) 

   
7.   Housing Compliance: Gas, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update (Pages 59 - 75) 

   
8.   Local Authority Search Figures Update 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning, providing information 

regarding an action raised at the previous meeting. 

(Pages 77 - 82) 

   
9.   Statement of Accounting Policies 

Annual report prior to the preparation of the Statement of Accounts to ensure 

that the policies are up to date and in line with the CIPFA Code of Practice. 

(Pages 83 - 100) 

   
10.   Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent. 
 

   



 
 

Meeting of the 
Governance and Audit 
Committee 
 
Thursday, 4 February 2021, 2.00 pm 

 
 

 

Meeting held virtually, via Skype 
 

Committee Members present 
 

Other Members present 

Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman) 
Councillor Paul Wood (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Gloria Johnson 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Mark Whittington 
Councillor Sue Woolley 
Councillor Jacky Smith 
 

Councillor Bob Adams 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 

Cabinet Members 
 

Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning 
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew, Cabinet Member for Culture and Visitor 
Economy 
 

Officers  
 

Chief Executive (Karen Bradford) 
Interim Director of Finance (Richard Wyles) 
Director of Law and Governance (Shahin Ismail) 
Head of Finance (Alison Hall-Wright) 
Interim Head of Planning (Jeff Upton) 
Interim Head of Housing Technical Services (Paul Crow) 
Governance and Risk Officer (Tracey Elliott) 
Acting Principal Democratic Officer (Shelley Thirkell) 
Democratic Officer (Naomi Page) 
 

Internal Audit 
 

Amjad Ali (RSM) 
 

 
 

26. Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence 
 

Following a register of attendance, it was confirmed that all Members of the 
Committee were present at the meeting.  

 

3

Agenda Item 3



 
 

27. Disclosure of interests 
 

No interests were disclosed. 
 

28. Minutes of the meeting held on 19 November 2020 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 19 November 2020 were proposed, seconded 
and agreed as a correct record. 

 

29. Minutes of the meeting held on 30 November 2020 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 30 November 2020 were proposed, seconded 
and agreed as a correct record.  

 

30. Updates from previous meetings 
 

The Chairman informed Members that an action sheet was included in the agenda 
pack providing an update on the actions raised at the previous two meetings. All of 
the actions were either in progress or had been completed.  
 
A Member referred to the Safeguarding Annual Report 2019-20 that had been 
presented to the Committee at its meeting on 19 November 2020. A suggestion 
was put forward that the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee should be 
asked to consider the development of the Council’s policies and framework in 
relation to its safeguarding responsibilities, to ensure that the arrangements were 
being robustly reviewed. 

 
Action  
 
1) The relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be asked to consider 

the development of the Council’s policies and framework in relation to its 
safeguarding responsibilities 

 

31. Internal Audit Progress Report 
 

A representative from RSM presented the Internal Audit progress report. It was 
confirmed that six assignments had been finalised since the last meeting of the 
Committee. Substantial assurance had been concluded for the Business Continuity 
and Emergency Planning assignment and reasonable assurance had been 
concluded for the Rent Collection and Arrears assignment. The Contracts and 
Procurement and Section 106 Agreement audits had resulted in partial assurances 
and a ‘no assurance’ conclusion had been given to the Repairs - Stock Control 
assignment. The Follow-Up 2 report would be presented later in the meeting.  

 
High, medium and low priority management actions had been agreed with relevant 
service areas across the audits, where necessary. There were five remaining audits 
to complete and these would be presented to the Committee at its next meeting. 

4



 
 

Members were given the opportunity to ask questions or make comments relating 
to the report, as summarised below.  

 
Repairs- Stock Control 

 
The Committee expressed concern that this audit had received a ‘no assurance’ 
conclusion. Several questions were raised as to how the stock control system had 
deteriorated and how the situation could be rectified moving forward. In response to 
these questions, the following points were made by officers: 

 

 The current operating system had been in place for approximately 1 year and 
had been initiated due to concerns around the availability of materials following 
the outbreak of Covid-19 

 Concerns had been raised about the level of stock and the controls in place via 
a whistle blowing procedure with Lincolnshire County Council and on social 
media 

 Counter fraud colleagues from a neighbouring authority had been asked to look 
at the arrangements around stock inventory and controls from a counter fraud 
perspective, in addition to the work undertaken by the internal auditors 

 Following these reviews, a new staffing structure had been implemented in the 
Repairs team 

 A new digital system was being introduced to track stock and introduce a ‘just in 
time’ approach to the Council’s repairs stock control 

 This new system was anticipated to be ready for use from the beginning of 
March 2021 

 The management actions raised in relation to the audit would be followed up as 
part of the auditors’ work in the 2021/22 period 

 
Contracts and Procurement 

 
A Member asked what system was in place to manage procurement and contracts 
information. The Interim Director of Finance explained that the Council used a 
software system called ProContract to manage its contract register. ProContract 
was an online platform that required data input from officers. The Contracts 
Register was available to view on the Council’s website. 

 
Rent Collection and Arrears 

 
Officers were asked for further explanation regarding the ‘reasonable assurance’ 
conclusion for the Rent Collection and Arrears audit. Members were reassured 
that the Council had prescribed procedures in place over specific timelines for the 
collection of rent arrears. However, following the temporary suspension of rent 
recovery during part of 2020, a period of inactivity had been inevitable. It was 
intended that another audit would be requested in this area, over a more 
normalised period in the future.   

 
 
 

5



 
 

Section 106 Agreements 
 

Members raised concerns regarding the lack of a formal process for monitoring 
Section 106 contributions from developers.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning and officers provided the following 
information in response to the questions raised: 

 

 The Section 106 process was already under review at the time the audit was 
carried out, due to the requirement for an Infrastructure Funding Statement to 
be published on the Council’s website 

 The collation of this data in preparation for publication identified a need for 
more formality in the Section 106 process 

 The Infrastructure Funding Statement was published on the Council’s website 
in December 2020 

 Procedures were now being put in place to deliver the management actions 
agreed; these were anticipated to be completed by the end of April 2021 

 The Interim Head of Planning was responsible for ensuring that the 
management actions were completed 

 The Section 106 balances would be reported to the Planning Committee on a 
quarterly basis 

 
Some comments were made that the overall report structure for this item was 
difficult to navigate. The Chairman asked that RSM consider separating the 
individual assignments and structuring them in a clearer way in future reports. 

 
Actions 

 
1) The hyperlink for the Council’s Infrastructure Funding Statement 

(published on the SKDC website in December 2020) to be circulated to 
Members of the Committee  

2) A six monthly update to be reported to the Governance and Audit 
Committee in relation to Section 106 figures 

3) The Planning Team to improve engagement with Parish and Town 
Councils and share appropriate Section 106 figures, where possible 

4) Officers to liaise with RSM and investigate the potential for a revised 
structure for Internal Audit progress reports from April 2021 
 

32. Internal Audit Follow-up Report 
 

A review had been undertaken of the 37 management actions raised from previous 
audits. Following this review, Internal Audit considered the Council to have made 
good progress, with more than 75% of the management actions having been 
implemented.  

 
A Member asked for confirmation that the management actions identified in respect 
of voids management would be implemented. The Committee were assured that 
RSM would continue to follow up all actions until they had been completed. The 

6



 
 

Council would also be introducing the use of ‘4action’ software, which provided a 
dashboard in order to track the agreed management actions for all audits 
undertaken.  
 
The Chief Executive added that the creation of a stronger framework for voids 
management was a key priority for the Council. A report on the voids process and 
performance had been presented to the Rural and Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, followed by Cabinet, in January 2021. This review of the 
current process and performance would be used to inform the development of a 
new Voids Policy. 

 
Action 

 
1) The Interim Director of Finance to consult with RSM to ensure that the 

dashboard developed using the ‘4action’ software gives a clear indication 
of progress within agreed management actions 

 

33. Update on Internal Audit Follow-up 1 Report 
 

The Interim Director of Finance presented the report, which provided an update on 
the progress of actions from the Internal Audit Follow-Up 1 Report. This officer-led 
review had been requested to address the loss of traction on some of the agreed 
management actions that had been noted by the Committee at its meeting on 19 
November 2020. The Chairman thanked officers for providing the update. No 
questions were raised.  

 
Decision 
 
a) Governance and Audit Committee noted and approved the contents of the 

report 
 

34. Indicative Internal Audit Plan 2021-22 
 

A representative from RSM presented the Indicative Internal Audit Plan 2021-22. 
Consideration had been given to audits previously undertaken at South Kesteven 
District Council, as well as typical areas covered by other Local Authorities. Based 
on this information and following discussions with the Corporate Management 
Team, an Indicative Plan had been compiled.  
 
The Plan was intended to be flexible and could be adjusted to respond to changes 
in risk profiles throughout the 2021/22 period, if needed. Members were 
encouraged to provide any feedback on the Indicative Plan. The final Internal Audit 
Plan 2021/22 would be presented to the Committee for approval at its meeting on 
18 March 2021.   
 
15:32 – Councillor Paul Wood left the meeting 
 

7



 
 

A suggestion was put forward to include Local Authority Searches in the Plan. 
Members felt that an audit into the types of searches and length of time taken to 
complete could be beneficial, as delays with searches was an issue regularly raised 
by residents. The Committee discussed whether an internal review of the searches 
process would be sufficient to address Members’ concerns in this area.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning offered to provide the Committee 
with a report providing data on the response times for searches completed in the 
preceding 9 months, with a quarterly report to be provided thereafter. Members 
welcomed the offer of an update in this area but felt that it should also be included 
as part of the audit process.  
 
A representative from RSM advised that the Local Authority Searches could be 
included in the Internal Audit Plan as one of the fundamental controls for 
‘continuous assurance’, which were areas that would receive a quarterly report from 
the Internal Auditors. After giving this option consideration, Members reiterated that 
a full audit should be put forward for consideration. 
 
Members also requested for a follow-up on the voids management actions to be 
included in the 2021/22 Plan. The Committee were reassured that the outstanding 
voids management actions would continue to be followed up as part of the Internal 
Audit Plan for the following year.  

 
Action 

 
1) The Committee to be presented with a report providing data on the 

response times for searches completed in the preceding 9 months 
 

Decision 
 

a) Governance and Audit Committee noted the contents of the report and 
the appended Indicative Internal Audit Plan 2021/22  

b) That consideration be given to a suggested amendment to the Internal 
Audit Plan 2021/22, to include a full audit of Local Authority Searches 

 

35. Strategic Risk Register 
 

The Interim Director of Finance presented the Strategic Risk Register report. The 
Strategic Risk Register had undergone further development since the Committee 
was last updated on its progress in November 2020. Following the feedback 
received, the updated draft contained further details around risk controls and 
actions required and displayed a colour coded residual risk score, to show the 
direction of travel towards mitigating risks.  
 
The Council would be using ‘4action’ software to produce a dashboard of risks and 
allow them to be tracked in real time. This would improve ownership and 
accountability for risk control across the Council. Officers were thanked for 
producing a clear and easy to follow document.  

8



 
 

 
Decision 

 
a) Governance and Audit Committee noted the contents of the report and 

agreed to approve the draft Strategic Risk Register 
 

36. Treasury Management Strategy 2021-22 
 

The Head of Finance presented the Committee with the Treasury Management 
Strategy 2021/22. The Council was required to produce the Strategy on an annual 
basis, covering capital and treasury management. The Committee was informed 
that the following changes had been made to the Strategy presented for approval: 

 

 The limit for the Council to invest with a body of high credit quality had been 
increased from £10m to £15m and the Corporate Group limit from £12m to 
£15m 

 The Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) lending terms had been changed, 
removing the ability for the Council to access PWLB borrowing if the request 
was associated with plans to purchase investment assets primarily for yield 
over a three year period 

 
Officers were asked if the Council currently held any investments with other Local 
Authorities and what level of risk was associated with this. The Committee was 
informed that the Council currently held investments with several Local Authorities. 
These agreements were always entered into through Treasury Advisors and a limit 
was set for lending amounts to limit risk.    

 
Action 

 
1) The Head of Finance to provide the Committee with further details of the 

investments the Council currently held with other Local Authorities 
 

Decision 
 

a) Governance and Audit Committee agreed to recommend to Council the  
2021/22 Treasury Management Strategy 

 

37. Work Programme 
 

Members noted the items on the Work Programme for the Committee’s next 
meeting on 18 March 2021.  

 

38. Close of the meeting 
 

The meeting closed at 16:11. 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Action Sheet 
Governance and Audit Committee – 4 February 2021 

Min 
no 

Agenda item Action Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

30 Updates from 
previous 
meetings 

The relevant Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee be asked to 
consider the development of the 
Council’s policies and framework 
in relation to its safeguarding 
responsibilities. 

Democratic 
Services 

Complete 
The Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee considered a ‘Safeguarding Review’ 
item at its meeting on 11 March 2021. 

18 March 2021 

31 Internal Audit 
Progress 
Report 

The hyperlink for the Council’s 
Infrastructure Funding Statement 
(published on the SKDC website 
in December 2020) to be 
circulated to Members of the 
Committee. 

Richard 
Wyles 

Complete 
Email circulated to the Committee on 04.02.21 

18 March 2021 

31 Internal Audit 
Progress 
Report 

A six monthly update to be 
reported to the Governance and 
Audit Committee in relation to 
Section 106 figures. 

Jeff Upton/ 
Democratic 
Services  

Not yet due 
Item added to the Work Programme as ‘TBC’ 
(pending approval of the annual programme of 
meetings). 

Summer 2021 
for next update 

31 Internal Audit 
Progress 
Report 

The Planning Team to improve 
engagement with Parish and 
Town Councils and share 
appropriate Section 106 figures, 
where possible. 

Jeff Upton In progress 
Response from Jeff Upton: 
Dialogue has begun with Parish/Town Councils, 
updates will be provided when reported to the 
planning committee during 2021, as well as 
publicising the next annual Infrastructure Funding 

Ongoing 

11

A
genda Item

 4



Min 
no 

Agenda item Action Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

Statement.  Dialogue will also take place on new 
contributions that are received during the year. 

31 Internal Audit 
Progress 
Report 

Officers to liaise with RSM and 
investigate the potential for a 
revised structure for Internal 
Audit progress reports from April 
2021. 

Richard 
Wyles/Tracey 
Elliott 

In progress 
This action is not yet live. Further details will be 
provided when it has been completed. 

April 2021 

32 Internal Audit 
Follow-up 
Report 

The Interim Director of Finance 
to consult with RSM to ensure 
that the dashboard developed 
using the ‘4action’ software gives 
a clear indication of progress 
within agreed management 
actions. 

Richard 
Wyles 

In progress 
This action is not yet live. Further details will be 
provided when it has been completed. 

Before 
implementation 
of the 4action 
software (date 
TBC) 

34 Indicative 
Internal Audit 
Plan 2021-22 

The Committee to be presented 
with a report providing data on 
the response times for searches 
completed in the preceding 9 
months. 

Jeff Upton (in 
consultation 
with 
Councillor 
Robert Reid) 

Complete 
A report will be presented to the Committee at its 
meeting on 18.03.21 
 

18 March 2021 

36 Treasury 
Management 
Strategy 2021-
22 

The Head of Finance to provide 
the Committee with further 
details of the investments the 
Council currently held with other 
Local Authorities 

Alison Hall-
Wright 

Complete 
Information was circulated to the Committee on 
10.03.21 

18 March 2021 

 

 

12



 

 

 

 
 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Internal Audit Plan 2021 - 2022  

Presented at the Governance and Audit Committee meeting of: 18 March 2021 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party.  

13

A
genda Item

 5



    

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

In preparing our Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22 we have worked closely with management to produce an audit programme which remains mindful of the 
continuing developments and challenges around Covid-19. Whilst this plan is presented for consideration by the Governance and Audit Committee, we will 
continue to hold regular meetings with management, during the year, to deliver an internal audit programme which remains flexible and ‘agile’ to ensure it 
meets your needs in these ever changing circumstances. 

The key points to note from our plan are:  

 

2021/22 Internal Audit priorities: At the request of the Interim Director of Finance, we were asked to provide details of what 
we are seeing in the local government sector and the key issues that have arisen from the internal audit reviews completed in 
2020/21. These were presented to the Statutory Officers Group meeting on 19 January 2021 for comment and a number of 
audit areas were agreed for inclusion in the 2021/22 internal audit plan. An indicative internal audit plan was then presented to 
the Governance and Audit Committee on the 4 February 2021 for Members to consider and any additional areas they required 
to be included in the internal audit plan. Based on discussions with Statutory Officers Group and feedback from Members, we 
have compiled a detailed internal audit plan for 2021/22 which is included at Section 1. The Council will be retendering for the 
provision of Internal Audit Services in 2021 and therefore a one-year Internal Audit Plan has been developed.  

 

Level of Resource: We will continue with our approach of introducing the use of technology when undertaking our operational 
audits. During 2020 we embraced more ways of using technology to undertake our audit work including the use of 4Action (the 
management action tracking tool), MS Teams meetings, secure web portals for audit data sharing and data analytics technology. 
This will strengthen our sampling and focus our audit testing.  

 

Core Assurance: Key priorities and changes within the Council during the period have been reflected within the proposed 
internal audit coverage for 2021/22. Local government continues to face significant financial pressure as well as the ongoing 
Coronavirus pandemic and a key theme of our work during 2020/21 includes a review of the Council’s Medium Term Financial 
Planning. We have also included a review of ‘Repairs Stock Control’ where the Council had received a negative assurance in 
2020/21. Members have requested a review of ‘Local Authority Searches’ and this has also been included in the plan. 

The Council has a number of subsidiary companies and the internal audit plan includes a review of the financial and 
governance arrangements of these subsidiary companies.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

14



 
 

 3
 

 

For each of the areas detailed in Section 2, we will also consider the impact of the Coronavirus pandemic and the controls in 
place to mitigate the risks associated with the pandemic.  

 

‘Agile’ approach: Our approach to working with you has always been one where we will respond to your changing assurance 
needs. By employing an ‘agile’ or ‘flexible’ approach to our service delivery, we are able to change the focus of audits / audit 
delivery; keeping you informed of these changes in our progress papers to Governance and Audit Committee during the year.   

15



     

 
 

4   
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

1. YOUR INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2021/22 ........................................................ 5 

2. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2021/22 .................................................................... 6 

APPENDIX A: YOUR INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE ................................................. 11 

APPENDIX B: INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER ........................................................... 12 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT ............................................................ 17 
 

CONTENTS 

16



 

 
 

 

 
  

5

Our approach to developing your internal audit plan is based on analysing your corporate objectives, risk profile and assurance 
framework as well as other, factors affecting South Kesteven District Council in the year ahead, including changes within the sector.  

Risk management processes 
We have evaluated your risk management processes and consider that we can place reliance on your risk registers to inform the internal audit plan. We have 
used various sources of information (see Figure A below) and discussed priorities for internal audit coverage with the Statutory Officers Group and the 
Governance and Audit Committee. 

Figure A: Audit considerations – sources considered when developing the Internal Audit Plan.  

Based on our understanding of the Council, the information provided to us by stakeholders, and the regulatory requirements, we have developed an annual 
internal plan for the coming year. (See Section 2 for full details).  

 

1. YOUR INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2021/22

17



 

6 
 

 

 
 

 
 

The table below shows each of the reviews that we propose to undertake as part of the internal audit plan for 2021/22. The table details the strategic 
objectives which may warrant internal audit coverage. This review of your risks allows us to ensure that the proposed plan will meet the Council’s assurance 
needs for the forthcoming year. As well as assignments designed to provide assurance or advisory input around specific risks, the plan also includes time for 
tracking the implementation of actions, continuous assurance reviews and an audit management allocation. 

Objective of the review  
(Strategic area) 

Audit approach Proposed timing Proposed 
Governance and 
Audit  
Committee 

Core Assurance 

Housing Compliance - Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire  

The Council has a duty to ensure that all Housing Revenue account properties,under its 
control meet the relevant health and safety regulations in respect to each of the following 
key areas:  

 Gas Safety checks (including solid fuel and oil-fired installations); 

 Electrical testing; 

 Legionella; 

 Asbestos; and 

 Fire Risk Assessments. 

A compliance audit to provide assurance that policies and procedures are being 
consistently, effectively and efficiently applied, ensuring that all statutory responsibilities are 
met. 

We will look to use data interrogation software to supplement our testing, which enables us 
to provide greater insight, as it allows for wider coverage of the areas under review. 

Management has requested a review in 2021/22 to ensure compliance with key areas and 
to provide assurance that remedial action has been taken following the internal audit 
findings in 2020/21. 

Compliance August 2021 September 2021 

2. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2021/22

18



 

7 
 

 

Objective of the review  
(Strategic area) 

Audit approach Proposed timing Proposed 
Governance and 
Audit  
Committee 

Street Scene – Stock Control 
To ensure that Street Scene Stock is managed and monitored effectively and that there is a 
readily supply of stock items available to assist in the efficient operations of the Council.  

Management has confirmed that in October 2020 the Street Scene department contracted a 
company to provide a ‘project lead’ to setup systems, implement an agreed plan, improve 
stores/stock and provide training and guidance. Our review will focus on the new system 
and processes being implemented and to ensure these are embedded. 

We will look to use data interrogation software to supplement our testing, which enables us 
to provide greater insight, as it allows for wider coverage of the areas under review. 

Risk Based September 2021 November  2021 

Repairs – Stock Control 
To ensure that Repairs Stock is managed and monitored effectively and that there is a 
readily supply of stock items available to assist in the efficient operations of the Council 

We will look to use data interrogation software to supplement our testing, which enables us 
to provide greater insight, as it allows for wider coverage of the areas under review. 

This area resulted in ‘no’ assurance in 2020/21 and management has requested a full audit 
in 2021/22. 

Risk Based September 2021 November 2021 

19



 

8 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Objective of the review  
(Strategic area) 

Audit approach Proposed timing Proposed 
Governance and 
Audit  
Committee 

Medium Term Financial Planning  

Following the impact of Covid-19 on all local authority  finances  there is increased pressure 
on councils to find savings to deliver a balanced budget, and this feeds through to their 
longer term financial planning, usually documented within the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy. The review will include the following areas: 

 Review of the process to compile the Medium Term Financial Plan; 

 An assessment of estimates and assumptions; 

 Monitoring expenditure against the Medium Term Financial Plan; 

 Plans in place to address any areas of overspend; and 

 Linkage to the Council’s savings plan. 

Risk Based September 2021 November 2021 

Council Subsidiary Companies 

To maintain adequate financial and governance arrangements for subsidiary companies 
operating on behalf of the Council. 

The exact scope will be agreed with management and our coverage will include the 
following across the three companies (EnvironmentSK, LeisureSK and InvestSK): 

 A review of the key financial risks the Companies have identified and proposals to 
mitigate these risks; 

 Review the corporate governance and reporting arrangements of the companies 
within a parent-subsidiary environment and identify areas where these could be 
improved; and 

 A review of the business plans for the companies, including plans for future trading 
activities and potential impact for the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy.   

Risk Based July 2021 September 2021 

20



 

9 
 

 

Objective of the review  
(Strategic area) 

Audit approach Proposed timing Proposed 
Governance and 
Audit  
Committee 

Disabled Facilities Grant 

We will review applications for grants to ensure that they are processed in line with 
statutory responsibilities and internal policies and procedures. We will also review the use 
of, and payments to, contractors, and tenant/applicant contributions made to the total cost 
following the eligibility assessment. Finally, we will review the budget monitoring process in 
place and the level of management information reported. 

This audit was deferred in 2020/21 and management has requested the audit in 2021/22 to 
review end to end processes from applications for grant to works being completed. 

Risk Based May 2021 September 2021 

Local Authority Searches 

The Land Charges service undertakes standard/non-standard and personal searches for 
customers both buying and selling a property within the District. The search requests arrive 
from a variety of sources including solicitors, conveyancers and members of the public for 
personal searches. The Land Charges service also collates information from other Council 
departments for search requests. The Council’s website states that currently the Council is 
completing the searches within an average 22 working days from receipt of completed 
application form and the appropriate fee. 

To provide assurance that appropriate arrangements are in place to maintain the Land 
Charges register is up to date, and that all applications and searches are handled in line 
with procedure and undertaken in a timely manner, the relevant fees are received and that 
joint working is undertaken with other key Council departments. 

Risk Based April 2021 May 2021 

Other Internal Audit Activity 

Continuous Assurance 
As part of the internal audit plan we will work with management to identify 10 fundamental 
key controls covering both financial and operational areas and undertake quarterly reviews. 
This would provide assurance to management and the Governance and Audit Committee 
that these fundamental key controls are operating effectively. These controls can include 
areas where there is no other assurance being received by management and the 
Governance and Audit Committee. 

Compliance Quarter 1 
Quarter 2 
Quarter 3 
Quarter 4 

May 2021 
September 2021 
November 2021 
February 2022 

21



 

10 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Objective of the review  
(Strategic area) 

Audit approach Proposed timing Proposed 
Governance and 
Audit  
Committee 

Follow Up 
To meet internal auditing standards and to provide assurance on action taken to address 
previously agreed management actions. We will undertake four follow up reviews in the 
year and report progress at each Governance and Audit Committee meeting. 

Follow Up Quarter 1 
Quarter 2 
Quarter 3 
Quarter 4 

May 2021 
September 2021 
November 2021 
February  2022 

Management 
This will include: 
 Annual planning; 
 Preparation for, and attendance at, Governance and Audit Committee; 
 Regular liaison and progress updates; 
 Liaison with external audit and other assurance providers; and 
 Preparation of the annual opinion. 

- Throughout the year - 

 
A detailed planning process will be completed for each review, and the final scope will be documented in an Assignment Planning Sheet. This will be issued 
to the key stakeholders for each review.  

2.1 Working with other assurance providers 
The Governance and Audit Committee is reminded that internal audit is only one source of assurance and through the delivery of our plan we will not, and do 
not, seek to cover all risks and processes within the Council.  

We will however continue to work closely with other assurance providers, such as external audit to ensure that duplication is minimised, and a suitable 
breadth of assurance obtained. 

22



 

 
 

 

 
  

11

Your internal audit service is provided by RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP. The team will be led by Rob Barnett as your Head of 
Internal Audit, supported by Amjad Ali as your client manager. 

Fees      
Our fee to deliver the plan is set out in a separate fee letter. 

Core team 
The delivery of the 2021/22 audit plan will be based around a core team. However, we will complement the team with additional specialist skills where 
required.  

Conformance with internal auditing standards 
RSM affirms that our internal audit services are designed to conform to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  

Under PSIAS, internal audit services are required to have an external quality assessment every five years. Our risk assurance service line commissioned an 
external independent review of our internal audit services in 2016 to provide assurance whether our approach meets the requirements of the International 
Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) published by the Global Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) on which PSIAS is based.   

The external review concluded that ““there is a robust approach to the annual and assignment planning processes and the documentation reviewed was 
thorough in both terms of reports provided to audit committee and the supporting working papers.” RSM was found to have an excellent level of conformance 
with the IIA’s professional standards.  

The risk assurance service line has in place a quality assurance and improvement programme to ensure continuous improvement of our internal audit 
services. Resulting from the programme, there are no areas which we believe warrant flagging to your attention as impacting on the quality of the service we 
provide to you. 

Our next external review will be conducted during 2021 and we will inform the Governance and Audit Committee of its findings. 

Conflicts of interest 
We are not aware of any relationships that may affect the independence and objectivity of the team, and which are required to be disclosed under internal 
auditing standards.  

APPENDIX A: YOUR INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE

23



 

12 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Need for the charter   
This charter establishes the purpose, authority and responsibilities for the internal audit service for South Kesteven District Council. The establishment of a 
charter is a requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and approval of the charter is the responsibility of the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  

The internal audit service is provided by RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP (“RSM”). 

We plan and perform our internal audit work with a view to reviewing and evaluating the risk management, control and governance arrangements that the 
Council has in place, focusing in particular on how these arrangements help you to achieve its objectives. The PSIAS encompass the mandatory elements of 
the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) as follows: 

• Core principles for the professional practice of internal auditing; 

• Definition of internal auditing; 

• Code of ethics; and 

• The Standards.  

Mission of internal audit 
As set out in the PSIAS, the mission articulates what internal audit aspires to accomplish within an organisation. Its place in the IPPF is deliberate, 
demonstrating how practitioners should leverage the entire framework to facilitate their ability to achieve the mission. 

“To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight”. 

Independence and ethics  
To provide for the independence of internal audit, its personnel report directly to the Rob Barnett (acting as your head of internal audit). The independence of 
RSM is assured by the internal audit service reporting to the Chief Executive, with further reporting lines to the Interim Director of Corporate Resources. 

The Head of Internal Audit has unrestricted access to the Chair of Governance and Audit Committee to whom all significant concerns relating to the adequacy 
and effectiveness of risk management activities, internal control and governance are reported. 

 

APPENDIX B: INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER

24



 

13 
 

 

Conflicts of interest may arise where RSM provides services other than internal audit to South Kesteven District Council. Steps will be taken to avoid or 
manage transparently and openly such conflicts of interest so that there is no real or perceived threat or impairment to independence in providing the internal 
audit service. If a potential conflict arises through the provision of other services, disclosure will be reported to the Governance and Audit Committee. The 
nature of the disclosure will depend upon the potential impairment and it is important that our role does not appear to be compromised in reporting the matter 
to the Governance and Audit Committee. Equally we do not want the Council to be deprived of wider RSM expertise and will therefore raise awareness 
without compromising our independence. 

Responsibilities  
In providing your outsourced internal audit service, RSM has a responsibility to: 

• Develop a flexible and risk based internal audit plan. The plan will be submitted to the Governance and Audit Committee for review and approval each 
year before work commences on delivery of that plan. 

• Implement the internal audit plan as approved, including any additional tasks requested by management and the Governance and Audit Committee. 

• Ensure the internal audit team consists of professional audit staff with sufficient knowledge, skills, and experience. 

• Establish a quality assurance and improvement program to ensure the quality and effective operation of internal audit activities. 

• Perform advisory activities where appropriate, beyond internal audit’s assurance services, to assist management in meeting its objectives.  

• Bring a systematic disciplined approach to evaluate and report on the effectiveness of risk management, internal control and governance processes.  

• Highlight control weaknesses and required associated improvements together with corrective action recommended to management based on an 
acceptable and practicable timeframe. 

• Undertake follow up reviews to ensure management has implemented agreed internal control improvements within specified and agreed timeframes. 

• Report regularly to the Governance and Audit Committee to demonstrate the performance of the internal audit service. 

For clarity, we have included the definition of ‘internal audit’, ‘senior management’ and ‘cabinet’. 

• Internal audit – a department, division, team of consultant, or other practitioner (s) that provides independent, objective assurance and consulting services 
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. The internal audit activity helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a 
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of governance, risk management and control processes. 

• Senior management – who are the team of individuals at the highest level of organisational management who have the day-to-day responsibilities for 
managing the organisation. 

25



 

14 
 

 

 
 

 
 

• Cabinet – The highest level governing body charged with the responsibility to direct and/or oversee the organisation’s activities and hold organisational 
management accountable. Furthermore, “cabinet” may refer to a committee or another body to which the governing body has delegated certain functions 
(e.g. an audit committee). 

Client care standards 
In delivering our services we require full cooperation from key stakeholders and relevant business areas to ensure a smooth delivery of the plan.  We 
proposed the following KPIs for monitoring the delivery of the internal audit service: 

• Discussions with senior staff at the client take place to confirm the scope six weeks before the agreed audit start date. 

• Key information such as: the draft assignment planning sheet are issued by RSM to the key auditee six weeks before the agreed start date.  

• The lead auditor to contact the client to confirm logistical arrangements at least 15 working days before the commencement of the audit fieldwork to 
confirm practical arrangements, appointments, debrief date etc.  

• Fieldwork takes place on agreed dates with key issues flagged up immediately. 

• The key auditee will provide RSM with all the “Requested Documents” as stated within the Assignment Planning Sheet no later than the Friday prior to the 
commencement of the audit.  This will ensure a prompt start to the audit on the first day. 

• A debrief meeting will be held with audit sponsor at the end of fieldwork or within a reasonable time frame. 

• Draft reports will be issued within 10 working days of the debrief meeting and will be issued by RSM to the agreed distribution list. 

• Management responses to the draft report should be submitted to RSM within 10 working days. 

• Within three working days of receipt of client responses the final report will be issued by RSM to the assignment sponsor and any other agreed recipients 
of the report. 

  We continue to closely monitor and implement official guidelines from the Government and health organisations in respect of Covid-19. All our staff 
must adhere to the relevant RSM Policies, including limiting time on site and completing the relevant approvals prior to any site visit.  

Authority 
The internal audit team is authorised to: 

• Have unrestricted access to all functions, records, property and personnel which it considers necessary to fulfil its function. 

26



 

15 
 

 

• Have full and free access to the Governance and Audit Committee. 

• Allocate resources, set timeframes, define review areas, develop scopes of work and apply techniques to accomplish the overall internal audit objectives.  

• Obtain the required assistance from personnel within the Council where audits will be performed, including other specialised services from within or 
outside the Council. 

The head of internal audit and internal audit staff are not authorised to: 

• Perform any operational duties associated with the Council. 

• Initiate or approve accounting transactions on behalf of the Council. 

• Direct the activities of any employee not employed by RSM unless specifically seconded to internal audit. 

Reporting  
An assignment report will be issued following each internal audit assignment.  The report will be issued in draft for comment by management, and then issued 
as a final report to management, with the executive summary being provided to the Governance and Audit Committee.  The final report will contain an action 
plan agreed with management to address any weaknesses identified by internal audit.  

The internal audit service will issue progress reports to the Governance and Audit Committee and management summarising outcomes of audit activities, 
including follow up reviews.  

As your internal audit provider, the assignment opinions that RSM provides the Council during the year are part of the framework of assurances that assist 
the board in taking decisions and managing its risks. 

As the provider of the internal audit service we are required to provide an annual opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk 
management and control arrangements. In giving our opinion it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute. The most that the internal audit 
service can provide to the board is a reasonable assurance that there are no major weaknesses in risk management, governance and control processes. The 
annual opinion will be provided to the Council by RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP at the financial year end. The results of internal audit reviews, and the 
annual opinion, should be used by management and the Board to inform the Council’s annual governance statement. 

Data protection 
Internal audit files need to include sufficient, reliable, relevant and useful evidence in order to support our findings and conclusions. Personal data is not 
shared with unauthorised persons unless there is a valid and lawful requirement to do so. We are authorised as providers of internal audit services to our 
clients (through the firm’s terms of business and our engagement letter) to have access to all necessary documentation from our clients needed to carry out 
our duties. 

27



 

16 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Quality Assurance and Improvement 
As your external service provider of internal audit services, we have the responsibility for maintaining an effective internal audit activity.  Under the standards, 
internal audit services are required to have an external quality assessment every five years. In addition to this, we also have in place an internal quality 
assurance and improvement programme, led by a dedicated team who undertake these reviews.  This ensures continuous improvement of our internal audit 
services.  

Any areas which we believe warrant bringing to your attention, which may have the potential to have an impact on the quality of the service we provide to you, 
will be raised in our progress reports to the Governance and Audit Committee. 

Fraud  
The Governance and Audit Committee recognises that management is responsible for controls to reasonably prevent and detect fraud. Furthermore, the 
committee recognises that internal audit is not responsible for identifying fraud; however internal audit will be aware of the risk of fraud when planning and 
undertaking any assignments.  

Approval of the internal audit charter 
By approving this document, the internal audit plan, the Governance and Audit Committee is also approving the internal audit charter. 

 

28



 

rsmuk.com 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the 
weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Actions for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact.  This report, or our work, should 
not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system 
of internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist.  Neither should our work be 
relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council, and solely for the purposes set out herein. This report should not therefore be 
regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. 
Any third party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or 
expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 

This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), 
without our prior written consent. 

We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

 

 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 

Rob Barnett (Head of Internal Audit) 

Robert.barnett@rsmuk.com 

07791 237 658 

 

 

 

 

 

Amjad Ali (Client Manager) 

Amjad.ali@rsmuk.com 

07800 617 139 

29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 
 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Internal Audit Progress Report 
18 March 2021 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed.  
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no  
responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party. 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 1 of 27

31

A
genda Item

 6



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council: Progress Report | 2 
 

 

Contents 
 

1 Key Messages .................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 
2 Reports ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 
Appendix A – Progress against the internal audit plan 2020/2021 ............................................................................................................................................................................ 8 
Appendix B – Other matters ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 2 of 27

32



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council: Progress Report | 3 
 

 

1 Key Messages 

 
Since the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting, we have finalised a further three internal audit assignment reports: 

• Streetscene – Stock Control;  

• Consultants & Agency Staff; and 

• Housing Compliance Update. 

The Streetscene – Stock Control was an advisory review designed to support the improvements by reviewing the current control framework and 
therefore an assurance opinion is not provided. 

The Consultants & Agency Staff review has resulted in a ‘reasonable assurance’ opinion.  

The Housing Compliance Update report is a separate agenda item. 

Further details are provided in Section 2 of this Progress Report. [To discuss and accept] 
 

 

The fieldwork for the ‘IT – Secure Remote Working and Operational Resilience’ review is currently taking place and this report will be finalised and 
presented at the next Governance and Audit Committee meeting. [To note] 

 

We will provide an internal audit opinion upon completion of the agreed internal audit plan. With a number of internal audits from which the Council 
can only take ‘partial’ or ‘no’ assurance, this will impact on the annual opinion (see Appendix B). [To note] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 3 of 27

33



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council: Progress Report | 4 
 

 

 

2 Reports 
2.1 Summary of final reports being presented to the Governance and Audit Committee 
This section summarises the reports that have been finalised since the last Governance and Audit committee meeting. We have finalised six reports since the previous 
meeting and these are detailed below:  

Assignment  Actions agreed 

H M L 

Streetscene – Stock Control 
Objective of the review: 

To ensure that Council stock is managed and monitored effectively and make sure there is a readily supply of stock items available to assist in 
the efficient operations of the Council. 

Overall assurance rating and management actions:  

The Council undertook a proactive ‘workshop’ service and procurement review which identified a number of possible improvements to be made. 
At the start of the audit it was agreed with the Strategic Director – Commercial and Operations that due to new systems being implemented 
imminently for stock control, which would update and change the current arrangements, internal audit would review the current arrangements in 
place and a second audit would be undertaken as part of the 2021/22 internal audit plan to review any findings from the first review and the new 
systems and arrangements once these have been embedded. We have agreed eight medium priority eight medium priority actions. 

The medium priority actions relate to: 

 A Stock Control Framework which sets out the Council’s approach to stock management and control is not in place. 

 Guidance documents are not in place for the management of stock clearly outlining all procedures regarding the management of stock within 
the department. 

 On review of the stock control processes in place, we identified that minimum and maximum stock levels have not been agreed and a goods 
receipting system is not in place.                                                                                                                                                                              

0 8 0 

Page 4 of 27

34



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council: Progress Report | 5 
 

 

Assignment  Actions agreed 

H M L 

For a sample of 20 purchase requisitions and a sample of 20 vehicle repairs jobs, testing identified four exceptions; in one case the part 
ordered was not recorded onto RoadBASE and in three cases there were delays in updating the stock records on RoadBASE of between 10 
days and 23 calendar days. 

 Up until October 2020 stock counts were not being undertaken. During October 2020 a stock count was undertaken and at the time of the 
audit the stock was being reconciled to RoadBASE. 

 Tolerance levels for stock counts have not been agreed and as stock counts are not undertaken variances are not identified and 
investigated. 

 There are no controls in place to ensure that stock collected from the stock area and subsequently not used has been returned to the stock 
area and RoadBASE updated. 

 Processes are not in place for the identification and write off of stock that is damaged and/or identified as being obsolete. 

 Access to the workshop and the stock control area (in the workshop) is not restricted and there are no additional security measures in place. 

Consultants and Agency Staff 
Objective of the review: 

To provide assurance on whether procurement and HR policies and procedures are being adhered to with regards to procuring consulting 
services and using agency workers. 

 Overall assurance rating and management actions:  

 

0 5 2 

Page 5 of 27

35



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council: Progress Report | 6 
 

 

Assignment  Actions agreed 

H M L 

An overall assurance rating of reasonable assurance has been given for this review. We have agreed five medium and two low priority 
management actions.  

The medium priority actions relate to: 

 For a sample of 14 consultants on testing identified that in one case documentation was not provided to confirm: the contract specifications 
and the terms and conditions; that due diligence checks had been undertaken; and it could not be confirmed if milestones/monitoring and 
performance measures were in place and monitored as the information was not provided to us.   

 For a sample of 14 consultants testing identified that in one case the contract was not signed by a Council delegated authority and in one 
case it could not be confirmed if a contract/agreement was in place as this was not provide to us.    

 Departments are responsible for the procurement of consultants for their areas however it was noted that the overall responsibility for 
oversight and monitoring of the use of consultants has not been assigned and as a result the use of consultants is not reported on and 
monitored by the Council. 

 For a sample of 14 agency staff testing identified that:  

Recruitment of agency worker  

- In seven cases for Agency Workers, it could not be confirmed if the recruitment of the agency staff was approved as the Agency Worker - 
Request/Extension Form was not provided to us.  

- In one case the Agency Worker - Request/Extension Form had been completed; however, this was not approved  

Extension of agency worker contract  

- In one case the extension to the contract was made verbally and was not approved as required.  

- In three cases where the contracts had been extended no documentation was provided to us to confirm that the extension had not been 
subject to approval.     

- In two cases the Agency Worker - Request/Extension Form had been completed but the extension had not been subject to approval. 

Page 6 of 27

36



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council: Progress Report | 7 
 

 

Assignment  Actions agreed 

H M L 

 For a sample of 14 agency staff testing identified that:  

- In one case it could not be confirmed if the use of agency staff was being monitored to ensure value for money was being obtained and the 
benefits outweighed the costs as this information was not provided.  

- In two cases no information was provided to confirm that the performance of the agency staff was being monitored. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 27

37



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council: Progress Report | 8 
 

 

Appendix A – Progress against the internal audit plan 2020/2021 
The current Covid-19 situation means that our clients and internal audit are working differently. We understand and recognise the organisations’ strategic / primary objectives, 
and that the developments around Covid-19 will continue to impact on all areas of the organisations’ risk profile. We will work closely with management to deliver an internal 
audit programme which remains flexible and agile to ensure it meets your needs in the current circumstances. In Appendix B we have highlighted changes to the internal audit 
plan which have been agreed with management. 

Assignment  Assurance Opinion Status  Target Governance and  Audit 
Committee  

Street Scene – Stock Control  Advisory Review Final Report Completed  –  to be presented at the March 
meeting 

March 2021 

Consultants and Agency 
Workers 

 

Final Report Completed –  to be presented at the March 
meeting 

March 2021 

Housing Compliance Update  n/a Final Report Completed –  to be presented at the March 
meeting 

March 2021 

Contracts and Procurement 

 

Final Report Completed –  to be presented at February 
meeting 

February 2021 

Page 8 of 27

38



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council: Progress Report | 9 
 

 

Assignment  Assurance Opinion Status  Target Governance and  Audit 
Committee  

Business Continuity Planning 

 

Final Report Completed –  to be presented at February 
meeting 

February 2021 

Rent Collection and Arrears 

 

Final Report Completed –  to be presented at February 
meeting 

February 2021 

Follow Up 2 Good Progress Final Report Completed –  to be presented at February 
meeting 

February 2021 

Repairs – Stock Control  

 

Final Report Completed –  to be presented at February 
meeting 

February 2021 

S106 

 

Final Report Completed –  to be presented at February 
meeting 

February 2021 

Page 9 of 27

39



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council: Progress Report | 10 
 

 

Assignment  Assurance Opinion Status  Target Governance and  Audit 
Committee  

Housing Compliance – Gas, 
Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos 
and Fire Safety 

 

Final Report Completed – presented at November 
meeting  

November 2020 

Follow Up 1 Reasonable Progress Final Report Completed – presented at November 
meeting 

November 2020 

General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR) – Post 
Implementation Review 

Advisory Final Report Completed – presented at November 
meeting  

November 2020 

IT – Secure Remote Working 
and Operational Resilience 

 Fieldwork In Progress –  to be presented at the June 
meeting 

May/June 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10 of 27

40



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council: Progress Report | 11 
 

 

Appendix B – Other matters 
Impact of findings to date on 2020/21 Opinions 
The Governance and Audit Committee should note that the assurances given in our audit assignments are included within our Annual Report. In particular, the Committee 
should note that any negative assurance opinions will need to be noted in the annual report and may result in a qualified or negative annual opinion.  

To date we have issued 12 final reports, two of which were ‘no assurance’ and two of which were ‘partial’ assurance (negative) opinions. These will result in a qualification to 
our annual opinion. We will provide a further update at the next meeting once the remaining audit is completed.  

Changes to the internal audit plan 
Since the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting in February 2021, management have requested that the Project Management Governance review be deferred to 
2021/22 and for the review to be undertaken in quarter 2. The Council are currently reviewing the corporate project management toolkit, as well as the line management and 
work priorities of the Transformation Team. A corporate projects database is also being compiled in order to provide a comprehensive dashboard of all corporate projects and 
it is envisaged that the internal audit will include a review of this. 

Other assurance activity 
Note Activity Overview of output
1 Housing Benefit Grant Validation We have completed the housing benefit grant validation testing and provided the 

results to Management and the Council’s external auditors. 
This work was undertaken as a separate engagement and we do not see this as a 
conflict of interest. The work performed does not form part of the internal audit 
annual opinion.

  

Page 11 of 27

41



 

 

rsmuk.com 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the 
weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Actions for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact.  This report, or our work, should not 
be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of 
internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist.  Neither should our work be relied 
upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council and solely for the purposes set out herein. This report should not therefore be 
regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. Any 
third party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk 
Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of 
whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 

This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), without 
our prior written consent. 

 

For more information contact 
Rob Barnett 
Robert.barnett@rsmuk.com 
Head of Internal Audit 
 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP 
Fifth Floor, Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds, LS1 4DL 
T: +44 113 285 5000 | DL: +44 7791237658 | W: www.rsmuk.com 

 
Amjad Ali 
Amjad.ali@rsmuk.com 
Senior Manager 
 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP 
Suite A, 7th Floor, East West Building, 2 Tollhouse Hill, Nottingham, NG1 5FS 
T: +44 115 964 4450 | DL: +44 7800 617139 | W: www.rsmuk.com 

Page 12 of 27

42



    

 
 

 

 

Why we completed this audit 
With the use of secure portals for the transfer of information, and through 
electronic communication means, remote working has meant that we have 
been able to complete our audit and provide you with the assurance you 
require. It is these exceptional circumstances which mean that 100 per cent of 
our audit has been conducted remotely. Based on the information provided by 
you, we have been able to sample test.  

An Advisory review of Stock Control at Streetscene was undertaken at South 
Kesteven District Council as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan 
for 2020/21. The focus of this audit was on workshop stock – these are 
common items used for the servicing and repair of vehicles and stock is held 
in the workshop area.  

Earlier in 2020 the Council undertook a proactive ‘workshop’ service and 
procurement review which identified a number of possible improvements to be 
made.  

At the start of the audit it was agreed with the Strategic Director – Commercial 
and Operations that due to new systems being implemented imminently for 
stock control which would update and change the current arrangements this 
audit was part one of a two part audit review. Part two of the audit will be 
agreed as part of the 2021/22 internal audit plan  

RoadBASE Fleet Management System (RoadBASE) is used for managing 
stock by the Streetscene department. This is in the process of being 
superseded by Fleet Wave which will integrate with Fleet Factors’ system to 
provide a comprehensive stock management system. 

In October 2020 the Streetscene department contracted Fleet Factors Limited 
(FFL) to provide a ‘project lead’ to setup systems, implement an agreed plan, 
improve stores/stock and provide training and guidance in the initial setup – 
this initial first 4 weeks at FFL’s cost. They will also provide all the stock and 
have ownership of it, thereby taking the risk on themselves. 

                     

If the Streetscene department requires additional onsite support or opt for a 
more permanent managed stores service thereafter, this will be at an agreed 
cost per calendar month or as mutually agreed depending on the total number 
of parts used and their financial value.   

Conclusion  
This review has confirmed that a framework is in place for stock control 
however we identified a number of significant gaps in the current control 
framework and weaknesses in adherence to the controls for managing stock.  

The pre-existing project that the Streetscene team had in train to introduce a 
new system and arrangements is expected to update the control framework 
and this review highlights eight areas of improvements for consideration of 
incorporation within the Streetscene’s plans. 

Management have accepted and are implementing all actions arising from this 
advisory review. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – STREETSCENE – STOCK CONTROL 

Page 13 of 27

43



 

 
 

 

Key findings 
 
We confirmed that the following controls are operating effectively in practice: 

 

Help on the use of the RoadBASE is also available within the system and a hard copy of the RoadBASE manual on how to use the system is 
maintained on file in a folder in the office. 

 

Five members of staff have access to RoadBASE and they were provided with one to one training on the use of RoadBASE. Two members of staff, 
the Transport Manager and the Office Administrator are trained to update the stock records (to book stock in and out). 

 

For a sample of 20 purchase requisitions and a sample of 20 vehicle repairs jobs, testing confirmed that a purchase requisition was raised and the 
subsequent purchase order were appropriately authorised.  

 
We identified the following areas for improvements:  

 

A Stock Control Framework which sets out the Council’s approach to stock management and control is not in place. 

 

Guidance documents are not in place for the management of stock clearly outlining all procedures regarding the management of stock within the 
department.  

 

On review of the stock control processes in place, we identified that minimum and maximum stock levels have not been agreed and a goods receipting 
system is not in place.  For a sample of 20 purchase requisitions and a sample of 20 vehicle repairs jobs, testing identified four exceptions; in one case 
the part ordered was not recorded onto RoadBASE and in three cases there were delays in updating the stock records on RoadBASE of between 10 
days and 23 calendar days.  

 

Up until October 2020 stock counts were not being undertaken. During October 2020 a stock count was undertaken and at the time of the audit the 
stock was being reconciled to RoadBASE. 

 

 Tolerance levels for stock counts have not been agreed and as stock counts are not undertaken variances are not identified and investigated.  

 

There are no controls in place to ensure that stock collected from the stock area and subsequently not used has been returned to the stock area and 
RoadBASE updated.      

Page 14 of 27

44



 

 
 

 

 

Processes are not in place for the identification and write off of stock that is damaged and/or identified as being obsolete. 

  

 

Access to the workshop and the stock control area (in the workshop) is not restricted and there are no additional security measures in place.   

 

Page 15 of 27

45



    

 
 

 

 

Why we completed this audit 
With the use of secure portals for the transfer of information, and through 
electronic communication means, remote working has meant that we have 
been able to complete our audit and provide you with the assurance you 
require. It is these exceptional circumstances which mean that 100 per cent of 
our audit has been conducted remotely. Based on the information provided by 
you, we have been able to sample test.  

A review of Consultants and Agency Staff was undertaken at South Kesteven 
District Council (SKDC) as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 
2020/21. 

Consultants are used by the Council for:  

 Expert knowledge  
 An objective outsider's perspective 
 Accomplishing short term goals 
 Outside market knowledge 
 Independent advice 

For Consultants the Council has a two year “managed service provider for 
consultants” contract with Reed Talent Solutions Limited (Consultancy Plus) 
and started using Consultancy Plus from 1 April 2020.   

Agency workers are used by the Council for short term working, working on 
specific projects, covering for leave of absence/vacancy or sudden departure 
of a permanent member of staff.   

For Agency Staff the Council has a two year agency staff recruitment contract 
with Advantage Resourcing UK Limited and started using their online service 
Simplify from October 2020. Simplify is used to create all job vacancies, allow 
the approved suppliers to submit candidate CVs and allow the contingent 
workers to record time they have worked eliminating the need for paper time 
sheets. 

 

Conclusion  
Internal audit opinion: 

This review has confirmed that a control framework is in place for Consultants 
and Agency Staff; however, we identified weakness in adherence to the 
controls and have agreed five ‘medium’ and two 'low' priority management 
actions. Further details are provided in section 2 of this report. 

Internal audit opinion: 

Taking account of the issues 
identified, the Council can 
take reasonable assurance 
that the controls in place to 
manage this area are suitably 
designed and consistently 
applied. However, we have 
identified issues that need to 
be addressed in order to 
ensure that the control 
framework is effective in 
managing the identified 
areas. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – CONSULTANTS AND AGENCY STAFF    

Page 16 of 27

46



 

 
 

 

Key findings 
We confirmed that the following controls are operating effectively in practice: 

 

Contract Procedure Rules are included in the Council’s Constitution. The Rules set out the principles, roles and processes involved in procurement at 
the Council and includes consultancy and employment agency contracts. The document was last updated in January 2020 and the Constitution is 
made available to all the staff on the Council’s website.  

 

A two year contract is in place for “a managed service provider for consultants” with Reed Talent Solutions Limited (Consultancy Plus). The contract 
was put into place in April 2020 and was signed by both parties.          

 

For a sample of 14 consultants testing confirmed that:  

- A review of internal capability and capacity was undertaken to determine whether to appoint a consultant or use in-house resource. 

- The costings of the contracts were undertaken and were held on file.  

 

A signed contract is in place for “managing temporary and permanent recruitment” of staff with Advantage Resourcing UK Limited. The two year 
contract was signed by both parties.   

 

We identified the following findings where management actions were agreed: 

 

For a sample of 14 consultants on testing identified that in one case documentation was not provided to confirm: the contract specifications and the 
terms and conditions; that due diligence checks had been undertaken; and it could not be confirmed if milestones/monitoring and performance 
measures were in place and monitored as the information was not provided to us.   

 

For a sample of 14 consultants testing identified that:  

- In one case the contract was not signed by a Council delegated authority.  

- In one case it could not be confirmed if a contract/agreement was in place as this was not provide to us.    

 

Departments are responsible for the procurement of consultants for their areas however it was noted that the overall responsibility for oversight and 
monitoring of the use of consultants has not been assigned and as a result the use of consultants is not reported on and monitored by the Council.  

 

Procedural guidance and system notes on the use of the consultants and agency workers has not been made available to the staff on the intranet.   

 

For a sample of 14 agency staff testing identified that:  

Recruitment of agency worker  

- In seven cases for Agency Workers, it could not be confirmed if the recruitment of the agency staff was approved as the Agency Worker 
Request/Extension form was not provided to us.  

Page 17 of 27

47



 

 
 

 

- In one case the Agency Worker -Request/Extension form had been completed however this was not approved  

Extension of agency worker contract  

- In one case the extension to the contract were made verbally and were not approved as required.  

- In three cases where the contracts had been extended no documentation was provided to us to confirm that the extension had not been subject to 
approval.     

- In two cases the Agency Worker - Request/Extension form had been completed but the extension had not been subject to approval. 

 

For a sample of 14 agency staff testing identified that:  

- In one case it could not be confirmed if the use of agency staff was being monitored to ensure value for money was being obtained and the benefits 
outweighed the costs as this information was not provided.  

- In two cases no information was provided to confirm that the performance of the agency staff was being monitored.  

 

Reports on the use of Agency staff are not reported to corporate management at the Council.  

 

Page 18 of 27

48



 

 
 

 

DETAILED FINDINGS AND ACTIONS 
 

This report has been prepared by exception. We have therefore only included in this section those areas of weakness in control or examples of lapses in 
control identified from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Objective: We will focus on whether procurement and HR policies and procedures are being adhered to with regards to procuring consulting services and 
using agency workers. Our review will also ensure that practices in relation to using consultants and agency workers are effective which enables the 
Council to achieve value for money. 

Area: Consultants  

Control 
 

The procurement documentation/contract includes the specification and the terms and conditions. Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

For the sample of 14 consultants testing identified that: 

- In one case the contract was not provided to us and as a result we were not able to confirm if the procurement documentation/ contract 
included the specification and the terms and conditions.   

- In 13 cases the contracts included the specification and the terms and conditions.  

There is a risk that consultants may be engaged without the specification and terms and conditions being contractually agreed. 

Management 
Action 1 

All Heads of Service will be reminded to ensure that:   

a)  All the procurement and contractual documentation is 
maintained  

b) Due diligence checks are undertaken and evidence to confirm 
the checks are maintained on file. 

c) Monitoring of consultants against milestones and performance 
measures and deadlines is undertaken to ensure value of money 
is being achieved and an audit trail is maintained on file. 

Responsible Owner: 
Corporate Management Team 

Date: 
31 March 2021 

Priority: 
Medium 

 

Page 19 of 27

49



 

 
 

 

Objective: We will focus on whether procurement and HR policies and procedures are being adhered to with regards to procuring consulting services and 
using agency workers. Our review will also ensure that practices in relation to using consultants and agency workers are effective which enables the 
Council to achieve value for money. 

Control 
 

Due diligence checks are conducted on the chosen consultant. 
 
 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

For a sample of 14 consultants testing confirmed that in one case documentation was not provided to confirm that due diligence checks 
had been undertaken.  

There is a risk that due diligence check may not have been undertaken.   

Management 
Action 2 

See management action 1. Responsible Owner: 
n/a 

Date: 
n/a  

Priority: 
n/a  

 

Objective: We will focus on whether procurement and HR policies and procedures are being adhered to with regards to procuring consulting services and 
using agency workers. Our review will also ensure that practices in relation to using consultants and agency workers are effective which enables the 
Council to achieve value for money. 

Control 
 

Contracts/agreements are in place for the chosen consultant. Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

For a sample of 14 consultants testing identified that:  

- In one case the contract/agreement was not provided to us although this was requested at the time of the audit and as a result, we were 
not able to confirm if a contract/ agreement was in place.  

- In one case the contract was not signed by the Council's delegated authority.    

 In event of a dispute or disagreement on the contractual terms there is a risk legal redress may not be available to the Council. 

Page 20 of 27

50



 

 
 

 

Management 
Action 3 

All the relevant staff will be reminded to ensure that contracts/ 
agreements:   
- Are in place for the chosen consultant.    
- The contracts/agreements are signed by both parties.   
- The contracts/agreements are maintained in a folder in a central 
location.

Responsible Owner: 
Corporate Management Team 

Date: 
31 March 2021 

Priority: 
Medium  

 

Objective: We will focus on whether procurement and HR policies and procedures are being adhered to with regards to procuring consulting services and 
using agency workers. Our review will also ensure that practices in relation to using consultants and agency workers are effective which enables the 
Council to achieve value for money. 

Control 
 

Monitoring against milestones, performance measures and deadlines are undertaken to ensure value for 
money is being achieved when using consultants.  

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

For a sample of 14 consultants testing established that:   

- In one case the monitoring and performance measures information were not provided to us although this was requested at the time of 
the audit and as a result, we were not able to confirm if monitoring was being undertaken.  

- In the remaining 14 cases milestones and performance measures and deadlines was undertaken.    

There is a risk that monitoring is not being undertaken and this may result in objectives and milestones not being met.   

Management 
Action 4 

See management action 1. 

 

Responsible Owner: 
n/a  

Date: 
n/a  

Priority: 
n/a  

 

Page 21 of 27

51



 

 
 

 

Objective: We will focus on whether procurement and HR policies and procedures are being adhered to with regards to procuring consulting services and 
using agency workers. Our review will also ensure that practices in relation to using consultants and agency workers are effective which enables the 
Council to achieve value for money. 

Control 
 

Missing Control 
The use of consultants is monitored and reported to senior management. 
 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

× 
- 

Findings / 
Implications 

The Council’s departments are responsible for the procurement of consultants for their area. It was noted that there is no one person 
assigned responsibility for the oversight on the consultants process and the monitoring of the use of consultants.    
A Management Information Monthly Report is available from Consultancy Plus (the consultancy system).   

We were not provided with any information to confirm that the report is reviewed and is reported to Senior Management.  

There is a risk that of inappropriate and unnecessary consultants being used where the process is not being overseen and also not 
reported to and monitored by Senior Management. 

Management 
Action 5 

c) Consultancy Plus monitoring reports will be produced,  
reviewed and  reported to the Corporate Management Team. 

Responsible Owner: 
Corporate Management Team 

Date: 
31 March 2021 

Priority: 
Medium 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 22 of 27

52



 

 
 

 

Objective: We will focus on whether procurement and HR policies and procedures are being adhered to with regards to procuring consulting services and 
using agency workers. Our review will also ensure that practices in relation to using consultants and agency workers are effective which enables the 
Council to achieve value for money. 

Area: Agency Staff 

Control 
 

Recruitment guidance is in place to provide guidance on the use of and recruitment of Agency staff and for 
the procurement of Consultants.  
 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

Procedural guidance notes are in place. A Managed Service Client Guide is in place. This provides guidance on the process and the 
system used for agency staff.  
A review established that the relevant staff were provided with training on the new system in November 2020. A Vendor Management 
System user guide (for Agency staff) was provided to all attendees at the training session. This covers the activities of all users of the 
system – Senior Managers, Finance Approvers, Hiring Managers and Timesheet Approvers.   

It was however noted that this guidance and also the guidance on the new system for consultants is not made available to the staff on the 
Council's Intranet.    

There is a risk that the system may be used incorrectly or the process not followed for the use of agency staff and consultants where 
guidance notes are not made available to the staff. 

Management 
Action 6 

A Recruitment Framework will be put into place on the intranet to 
include up to date guidance and procedures on both consultants 
and agency workers. 

Responsible Owner: 
Head of Organisational Development 

Date: 
31 March 2021 

Priority: 
Low  

 

Page 23 of 27

53



 

 
 

 

Objective: We will focus on whether procurement and HR policies and procedures are being adhered to with regards to procuring consulting services and 
using agency workers. Our review will also ensure that practices in relation to using consultants and agency workers are effective which enables the 
Council to achieve value for money. 

Control 
 

An Agency Worker - Request/Extension form is required to be completed for the use of Agency Staff. The 
reason for the agency worker is recorded on the form and the form is approved by Finance and the relevant 
Director. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

Recruitment of Agency Staff  

For a sample of 14 agency staff testing confirmed that:  

- In seven cases the Agency Worker - request/ extension form was not provided to us and as a result we were not able to confirm the use 
of agency staff was appropriately authorised. It was noted that several of the recruiting managers have now left the Council and it was not 
possible to locate the relevant forms.  

- In one case the form was completed but was not approved by Finance and the relevant Director.  

Where the use of agency staff is not approved there is a risk that there may be an increased use/ unnecessary use of agency staff agency 
and a financial cost to the cost. A review established that in the new system agency recruitment cannot proceed without the authorisation 
of Finance and the relevant Director. 

Management 
Action 7 

All the relevant Managers will be reminded to ensure that: 

a) The Agency Worker - request/ extension form is completed and 
is subject to authorisation for the recruitment of agency workers. 

b) The Agency Worker – request/ extension form is completed for 
the extension of agency staff contracts. 

c) The extension to the contract is subject to approval from 
Finance and the relevant Director.  

d) A copy of the Agency Worker - request/ extension form is 
maintained on file in a central location. 

Responsible Owner: 
Head of Organisational Development 

Date: 
31 March 2021 

Priority: 
Medium 

 

 

 

Page 24 of 27

54



 

 
 

 

Objective: We will focus on whether procurement and HR policies and procedures are being adhered to with regards to procuring consulting services and 
using agency workers. Our review will also ensure that practices in relation to using consultants and agency workers are effective which enables the 
Council to achieve value for money. 

Control 
 

The Agency Worker – Request/Extension form is completed for the extension of agency staff contracts. The  
reason for the extension is documented on the form and the extension is approved by Finance and a 
Director. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

Extension of agency staff contracts  

For a sample of 14 agency staff testing confirmed that:   

- In one case the extension to the contract was agreed verbally.  

-The recruiting managers for three agency staff confirmed that the contracts had been extended; however we were not able to confirm if 
the extension was approved as the form was not provided.    

- In two cases the contracts were extended and the form was completed however the form was not signed by Finance and the relevant 
Director to confirm the approval of the extension of the contract.     

There is a risk that inappropriate extension/s of the agency staff contracts will occur.  

Management 
Action 8 

See management action 7. 

 

Responsible Owner: 
n/a  

Date: 
n/a  

Priority: 
n/a  

 

  

Page 25 of 27

55



 

 
 

 

Objective: We will focus on whether procurement and HR policies and procedures are being adhered to with regards to procuring consulting services and 
using agency workers. Our review will also ensure that practices in relation to using consultants and agency workers are effective which enables the 
Council to achieve value for money. 

Control 
 

Managers monitor the performance of agency staff against set objectives. Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

Monitoring of performance of agency staff  

For a sample of 20 Agency staff testing confirmed that in two cases information was not provided to confirm that the performance of the 
agency staff was being monitored.  

There is a risk that the performance of the agency staff may not be monitored. 

Management 
Action 9 

a) All Heads of Service will be reminded to ensure that:   

 - Monitoring is undertaken to ensure that value for money is being 
obtained and the benefits outweigh the costs of using agency 
staff.  

- The performance of the agency staff is monitored.   

b) Evidence to confirm the monitoring is maintained on file. 

Responsible Owner: 
Head of Organisational Development 

Date: 
31 March 2021 

Priority: 
Medium 

Page 26 of 27

56



 

 
 

 

Objective: We will focus on whether procurement and HR policies and procedures are being adhered to with regards to procuring consulting services and 
using agency workers. Our review will also ensure that practices in relation to using consultants and agency workers are effective which enables the 
Council to achieve value for money. 

Control 
 

Managers using agency staff monitor their use to ensure value for money is obtained and the benefits 
outweigh the costs. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

Value for Money  

For a sample of 14 agency staff testing confirmed that in one case no information was provided to confirm that the use of agency staff was 
monitored to ensure value for money was being obtained and the benefits outweigh the costs. 

There is a financial risk to the Council where use of agency workers is not monitored to ensure value for money is obtained and if the 
benefits outweigh the costs.  

Management 
Action 10 

See management action 9. Responsible Owner: 
n/a  

Date: 
n/a  

n/a  

 

Objective: We will focus on whether procurement and HR policies and procedures are being adhered to with regards to procuring consulting services and 
using agency workers. Our review will also ensure that practices in relation to using consultants and agency workers are effective which enables the 
Council to achieve value for money. 

Control 
 

A spreadsheet is used to monitor the use of agency staff.  The spreadsheet is reviewed by the Head of 
Organisational Development. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

Sample testing confirmed that for April 2020, June 2020 and October 2020 a spreadsheet was maintained of the use of agency staff. 

Reports on the use of Agency Staff are available from the Simplify, the vendor management system.  

A review established that for December 2020 and January 2021 reports were produced from the system and reviewed by the Head of 
Organisational Development. It was noted that the reports are not reported to senior management at the Council.    

There is a risk that senior management are not informed on the use of agency staff.  Prior to the new system, Simplify, a spreadsheet was 
maintained by the Senior Human Resources Officer.    

Management 
Action 11 

Reports on the use of agency workers will be reported to the 
Corporate Management Team every six months 

Responsible Owner: 
Head of Organisational Development 

Date: 
31 March 2021 

Priority: 
Low  

Page 27 of 27

57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL  
Housing Compliance: Gas, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety – Update 

Internal Audit Report 12.20/21 

Final  

9 March 2021 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party.  

59

A
genda Item

 7



    

 
 

   2
 

 

 

With the use of secure portals for the transfer of information, and through electronic communication means, remote working has meant that we have been able to 
complete our review and provide you with the assurances you require. It is these exceptional circumstances which mean that 100 per cent of our audit has been 
conducted remotely. Based on the information provided by the Council, we have been able to sample test, or complete full population testing using data analytics 
tools. 

Background 
At the request of Management and the Governance and Audit Committee, a review has been undertaken to provide update on progress to implement previously 
agreed management actions raised as part of the ‘Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety’ review which had resulted in the 
Council taking no assurance around these compliance areas. As part of the update work, we have considered the 16 management actions comprising of seven 
`high`, eight 'medium’ and one ‘low’ priority actions. 

The implementation of a new Customer Relationship Management system (Propeller) is a fundamental part of the Council’s continued efforts to adhere to all levels 
of housing compliance.  The use of Propeller  will ensure a single point of certificate holding including dates of last safety checks and the next due safety checks, 
contractor integration, performance monitoring, reviews and reports for Gas, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety. The implementation of Propeller is ongoing and 
staff are applying the separate components to the system in order to handle each area of housing compliance. The Council is looking at a proposed go live date of 
Propeller of 1 April 2021. Management have confirmed that the introduction of Propeller will result in a number of outstanding management actions being 
implemented.  This will include: 

• Compliance and management reporting function across all compliance areas including Gas, Electrical, Fire, Asbestos, Legionella & Lifts and other 
compliance areas as necessary such as Emergency Lighting. 

• Oversight of update actions allowing management to monitor and close any outstanding actions.  
• A system which is easy to use, cost effective and quick to implement and can integrate with existing systems backed by an in-depth knowledge of 

compliance management.  
• A system that is modular based with an opportunity to add on Workforce Management to manage works for Operatives .  

Conclusion  
Taking account of the issues identified in the remainder of the report, in our opinion South Kesteven District Council is taking positive steps in implementing agreed 
management actions. From our review we have confirmed that seven actions have been fully implemented and five actions were in progress at the time of the 
audit. Management are currently working to ensure that the remaining four actions are fully implemented once the new system goes live. A new action plan and 
implementation dates have been set and agreed by the management team. 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

60



    

 
 

   3
 

 

Progress on actions 
The following table includes details of the status of each management action: 

 
Implementation status by review 

 
Number of 

actions 
agreed 

Status of management actions

Impl. (1) Impl. ongoing 
(2) 

Not impl. (3) Superseded 
(4) 

Confirmation as 
completed or no 
longer necessary 

(1)+(4) 

03.20/21 Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, 
Asbestos and Fire Safety 16 7 5 4 0 7 

Total 16 7 5 4 0 7 

61



 

4 
 

 

2 FINDINGS AND MANAGEMENT ACTIONS 
Status Detail 

1 The entire action has been fully implemented. 
2 The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 
3 The action has not been implemented. 
4 The action has been superseded and is no longer applicable. 
5 The action is not yet due. 

 

Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

a) An electrical testing programme will be implemented 

b) The Council will agree a frequency at which the programmes will be reconciled.    

c) The gas, solid fuel, oil fuelled, legionella, asbestos, electrical and fire safety programmes/records will then be reconciled to the housing 
management system and stock condition database at the agreed frequency.  

Management Comment: Note new compliance system to be acquired and commissioned by December 2020. 

High 

Audit finding 
/ status 

The Council is currently seeking approval for the awarding of an electrical works contract.  A report has been published and will be 
presented to Cabinet on 16 March 2021 for approval. 

The Council is also currently in the process of introducing a new Customer Relationship Management system (Propeller) that will hold all 
levels of health and safety compliance information for all Council properties including information on gas, solid fuel and oiled fuelled 
appliances for which the Council has responsibility. The system will hold information relating to legionella, asbestos, electrical and fire 
safety programs. Management envisage Propeller will be implemented from April 2021.  

Management advised the interim arrangement is that the Stock Database Officer is the gate keeper who is notified accordingly and 
updates relevant systems/persons. In addition, the Gas Team, who are the team that undertake heating upgrades, and subsequently 
advise the heating contractor to include in servicing plans. Once Propeller is introduced all compliance information/job management will 
be held/managed within Propeller. The contractors will have direct access to Propeller thus negating the requirement to reconcile any of 
the systems. 

62



 

5 
 

 

Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update  
Management have confirmed that there will be no need to reconcile the gas, solid fuelled, legionella, asbestos, electrical and fire safety 
programmes and records to the asset management system as the Council have decided to use Propeller’s job management functionality 
which negates the need to undertake system reconciliations.  
 
3 - The action has not been implemented.  
 
Management Update: The management actions relating to performing reconciliations between programmes and the asset management 
database will be superseded by the introduction of Propeller. 
The decision to award the electrical works contract will be presented to Cabinet on 16 March for approval. It is envisaged that the 
electrical testing programme will be rolled out from 1 April 2021. 

Management 
Action 1 

Management action  

Following the awarding of the electrical works contract, the electrical 
testing programme will be rolled out.  

Responsible Owner:  

Interim Head of Housing 
Technical Services 

Date:  

30 April 2021 

Priority: 

High 
 

 

Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

a) A log of remedial actions identified for housing compliance safety checks/servicing on gas, solid fuel, oil fired, electrical and fire safety 
will be maintained documenting the remedial actions, the target date for resolving the actions and the date the actions were resolved.  

b) This log will be subject to regular monitoring to ensure that the remedial actions are resolved and on a timely basis. 
High 

Audit finding / 
status 

The Council is currently in the process of installing Propeller that will hold all levels of health and safety compliance management details 
for all properties.  This will include a log of all remedial actions and the regular monitoring process will also be undertaken through this 
system. The proposed implementation date for this system is April 2021. 
It was confirmed by the Project Lead that software widgets are currently being built which will produce KPI`s and work orders/actions that 
arise out of assessments and checks and these will be managed through job management within Propeller.  This will ensure the log of 
remedial actions identified can be regularly monitored and reported. We have not received any evidence to support this as discussions 
and implementation of this is ongoing. 
Management have confirmed that currently there is no new log for fire safety as new Fire Risk Assessments are just commencing and the 
Council is building a fire safety software widget into the Propeller system which will allow all actions to be directly uploaded from the 
handheld devices. Servicing/testing on fire safety is reported from site by the contractor to the Council and then logged and monitored 

63



 

6 
 

 

Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update  
through the Improvements Team. Management have confirmed that this has now been set up so this is undertaken via the Repairs Team 
and they will utilise the Propeller functionality to manage progress on works requirements. 
There are no remedial logs of electric checks in place  as the required programme has not yet commenced. If one-off ad-hoc then CAT 1 
and CAT 2 are done immediately on site – this is recorded on the certificate. 
The heating remedial actions have never been monitored as all calls go direct to the contractor. 
 
3 - The action has not been implemented.  
 
Management Update: The management actions relating to maintaining a log of remedial actions will be superseded by the introduction of 
Propeller. Propeller includes a job management system for the management and monitoring of compliance actions. 

Management 
Action 2 

Management action  
All compliance actions will be monitored daily through Propeller with 
exclusion of heating repairs which will be raised and monitored through 
Northgate OHMS.  

Responsible Owner:  
Interim Assistant Director of 
Housing 

Date:  
30 April 2021 

Priority: 
High 
 

 

Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

a) The Council will implement a contract for fire safety. 
b) A full survey and risk assessment of the fire integrity of sheltered accommodation and flats will be arranged.  

c) Going forward the fire risk assessments will be subject to annual review.   
High 

Audit finding 
/ status 

The Council have appointed a contractor to undertake full surveys and fire risk assessments of the sheltered accommodation and flats. 
The Council has drafted the Fire Safety Management Plan (FSMP) and this will be adopted by in due course but has been agreed by the 
Compliance Group.  It was confirmed by the Interim Assistant Director of Housing that this is on a forward plan for Rural and 
Communities Overview Scrutiny Committee on 29 April 2021, Cabinet and Full Council to review and sign off. The FSMP details the 
fire risk assessments and clearly notes that they will be undertaken annually. 
 
2 - The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented.  
 
Management update: Final approval to implement the FSMP be granted by Cabinet on 11 May 2021. 

64



 

7 
 

 

Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update  

Management 
Action 3 

Management action  
Following approval of the FSMP fire risk assessments will be subject to an 
annual review.  

Responsible Owner:  
Interim Head of Housing 
Technical Services 

Date:  
30 June 2021 

Priority: 
High 
 

 

Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

a) A suite of performance information for housing compliance - gas, electrical, legionella, asbestos and fire safety will be agreed by 
Council. 
b) Performance management reports will be produced and reviewed each month by the Repairs Manager, Improvements Manager and 
the Assistant Director Housing for gas, electrical, fire safety, legionella and asbestos.    
c) As a minimum the Council will be provided with performance and KPI data on housing compliance: gas, electrical, fire safety, legionella 
and asbestos every quarter.   
High 

Audit finding 
/ status 

Management have implemented a weekly KPI spreadsheet as an interim measure detailing all elements of housing compliance areas 
showing total number of checks, total checks outstanding and totals overdue for each compliance area. Management have confirmed that 
the objective is to monitor these matters through Propeller which will allow reports to be automatically generated and sent to the relevant 
officer/Cabinet Member at a set frequency. 
 
2 - The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 
 
Management Update: The suite of KPIs is currently being built into Propeller. This will enable auto generated system reports to be 
produced and sent at agreed frequencies and tailored to the relevant management group, Committee and Cabinet. 

Management 
Action 4 

Management action  
a) Performance management reports will be produced through the 
Propeller system and reviewed each month by the Repairs Manager, 
Improvements Manager and the Assistant Director Housing for gas, 
electrical, fire safety, legionella and asbestos. 

Responsible Owner:  
b) Interim Head of Housing 
Technical Services 
c) Interim Head of Housing 
Technical Services 

Date:  
30 April 2021 

Priority: 
High 
 

 

 

65



 

8 
 

 

Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

a) An up to date Housing Asset Management Strategy will be Implemented. 
b) The frequency of the review of the Housing Asset Management Strategy will be agreed and reviewed accordingly including the addition 
of version control.  
c) Once a full review of the Asset Management Strategy has been completed appropriate consultation with tenants and leaseholders will 
be undertaken. 
d) The Housing Asset Management Strategy will be disseminated to all the relevant staff. 
Medium 

Audit finding 
/ status 

It was confirmed by Interim Head of Technical Services that a new Asset Management Strategy will only be possible once the Stock 
Condition Survey is completed. This survey is currently in its initial start phase and will be completed by October 2021. The Asset 
Management Strategy therefore cannot emerge until the outputs from the survey are known.  
 
3 - The action has not been implemented.  
 
Management Update: Asset Management strategy to be developed etc following completion of the stock condition survey in December 
2021. 

Management 
Action 5 

Management action  
a) An up to date Housing Asset Management Strategy will be Implemented, 
following completion of the stock condition survey. 
b) The frequency of the review of the Housing Asset Management Strategy 
will be agreed and reviewed accordingly including the addition of version 
control.  
c) Once a full review of the Asset Management Strategy has been 
completed appropriate consultation with tenants and leaseholders will be 
undertaken. 
d) The Housing Asset Management Strategy will be disseminated to all the 
relevant staff. 

Responsible Owner:  
Director of Housing and 
Property  

Date:  
4 April 2022 

Priority: 
Medium 
 

 

Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

a) Electrical safety procedures will be implemented  for tenanted and sheltered housing properties.  
b) Fire safety procedures will be implemented for housing properties.  
c) The following policies/procedures will be reviewed and updated as required:  

66



 

9 
 

 

Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update  
- Asbestos Management Policy. 
- Asbestos Removal Procedures to Contractor - Voids. 
- Property Services Asbestos Management Strategy. 
- Procedures to ensure servicing of gas burning appliances within Council owned housing stock. 
- Fire Safety. 
- Shower Head Procedure – Voids. 
d) The policies and procedures will be subject to review every three years or earlier in the event of any changes occurring and include 
version control.  
Medium 

Audit finding 
/ status 

The Council have developed and approved an Electrical Safety Check Plan detailing procedures for electrical safety checks to be 
undertaken for tenanted and sheltered schemes.  
We have received and reviewed the Fire Safety Plan and noted that this does not contain any details relating to the fire safety procedures.  
Management have confirmed that the procedures relating to (Electric safety and gas safety (as well as oil, LPG, solid fuel) have been 
updated. The shower head procedure has also been reviewed. Management also confirmed that FSMP is a policy document and does 
contain the frequency of testing, servicing, FRAs etc. Management confirmed that the asbestos management policy is a recent 
introduction (2019) and therefore does not require reviewing as this is not due until 2021.  
 
2 - The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 
 
Management Update: All actions have been completed with the exception of the fire safety procedure requirement as this forms part of the 
FSMP that is waiting Cabinet approval on 11 May 2021. Separate fire safety procedures are not required as these processes are being 
digitalised and built into Propeller as part of Propeller’s job management process.   

Management 
Action 6 

Management action  
a) Fire safety procedures will be implemented for housing properties.  
b) The policies and procedures will be subject to review every three years 
or earlier in the event of any changes occurring and include version control.  

Responsible Owner:  
Interim Head of Housing 
Technical Services 

Date:  
30 June 2021      

Priority: 
Medium 
 

 

 

 

67



 

10 
 

 

Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

a) The three members of staff will be reminded to complete their online fire awareness training.  
b) The Improvements Team training matrix will be maintained up to date  
c) A monitoring system will be put into place for Managers to ensure all relevant health and safety training and job-related training has 
been undertaken and the matrix is maintained up to date. 
Medium 

Audit finding 
/ status 

Management are in the process of implementing a training matrix for key compliance areas. Once the training matrix is in place a 
monitoring system will be incorporated to continually monitor job-related training. 
 
2 - The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 
 
Management Update: 
Officers have reviewed the existing training matrix and have agreed to produce a totally new version initially for fire safety and fire safety 
compliance. This contains detailed capabilities requirements based on knowledge (qualifications) and skill requirements (abilities). Once 
agreed this format will be used to develop all compliance training and general training requirements across Housing Technical Services 
and Housing Services and will be monitored accordingly depending on training needs and frequency of training.  

Management 
Action 7 

Management action  
a) The Improvements Team training matrix will be maintained up to date   
b) A monitoring system will be put into place for Managers to ensure all 
relevant health and safety training and job-related training has been 
undertaken and the matrix is maintained up to date. 

Responsible Owner:  
a) Improvements Manager 
b) Improvements Manager 
and Repairs Manager 

Date:  
30 June 2021 

Priority: 
Medium 
 

 

Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

All relevant staff and contractors will be reminded to ensure that the housing compliance safety checks for gas, oil fuel, solid fuel, legionella, 
fire safety and electrical is undertaken in accordance to the timescales set by the Council. 
Medium 

Audit finding 
/ status 

Management provided meeting minutes to confirm that Council staff involved in monitoring compliance areas meet on a weekly basis to 
discuss evidence provided and to confirm that regular staff meetings take place to discuss performance issues.  
There is no evidence whereby contractors have been reminded to ensure that the housing compliance safety checks for gas, oil fuel, solid 
fuel, legionella, fire safety and electrical is undertaken in accordance to the timescales set by the Council. It was confirmed with the Interim 
Head of Technical Services the full requirements of this action and it has been agreed to address this area.  

68



 

11 
 

 

Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update  
 
2 - The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented  
 
Management Update: All necessary compliance timescales are monitored with weekly KPI information produced. With regard to safety 
checks for gas, fuel oil, LPG and solid fuel, we monitor the annual service information on a daily basis to ensure the contractor is 
undertaking as required. If any issues arise we immediately contact the contractor. We have currently suspended our meetings with the 
heating contractor. Regular meetings are taking place with our water hygiene and fire safety contractors and compliance is monitored via 
these meetings. With regard to electrical testing we have only just appointed a new programme contractor who has not yet commenced the 
programme. 

Management 
Action 8 

Management action  
All relevant contractors will be reminded to ensure that the housing 
compliance safety checks for gas, oil fuel, solid fuel, legionella, fire safety 
and electrical is undertaken in accordance to the timescales set by the 
Council. 

Responsible Owner:  
Interim Head of Housing 
Technical Services 

Date:  
30 April 2021 

Priority: 
Medium 
 

 

Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

a) The Council will agree the housing compliance areas where internal quality assurance checks will be undertaken.  
b) The checks will then be undertaken accordingly. 
c) Monitoring will be undertaken to ensure that the required internal quality assurance audits/checks are being undertaken. 
Medium 

Audit finding 
/ status 

We have not received any evidence to support the management actions agreed. It was confirmed with the Project Lead that the Council 
have recruited an Interim Compliance Manager who will agree the area quality assurance framework to ensure audit checks are 
undertaken to monitor completion and quality of safety checks.  
 
 
3 - The action has not been implemented.  
 
Management Update: Currently the Interim Head of Technical Services is investigating use of Compliance Document Management 
System (CDMS) with Propeller. CDMS will provide the audit/quality checks. We are at present using Corgi to undertake our gas servicing 
audits. 
 

69



 

12 
 

 

Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update  

Management 
Action 9 

Management action  
a) The Council will agree the housing compliance areas where internal 
quality assurance checks will be undertaken.  
b) The checks will then be undertaken accordingly. 
c) Monitoring will be undertaken to ensure that the required internal quality 
assurance audits/checks are being undertaken. 

Responsible Owner:  

Repairs Manager and Interim 
Head of Housing Technical 
Services 

Date:  

30 June 2021 

Priority: 

Medium  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

70



 

13 
 

 

APPENDIX A: ACTIONS COMPLETED  
From the testing conducted during this review we have found the following actions to have been fully implemented 

Assignment title Management actions

03.20/21 Housing Compliance: 
Gas, Electrical, Legionella, 
Asbestos and Fire Safety 

 

a) The last safety check and next safety check date will be recorded on the housing compliance programmes 
maintained on spreadsheets.  

b) The Council will investigate implementing a software system to maintain and manage the housing 
compliance safety checks/servicing programmes. 

03.20/21 Housing Compliance: 
Gas, Electrical, Legionella, 
Asbestos and Fire Safety 

For the eight cases identified a review will be undertaken to identify the checks to be undertaken and they will 
be undertaken accordingly.  

 

03.20/21 Housing Compliance: 
Gas, Electrical, Legionella, 
Asbestos and Fire Safety 

Where required certificates or similar are held centrally for the gas (including solid fuel and oil fuelled), 
asbestos, legionella, electrical testing and fire safety checks completed for every property which include the 
date inspected, outcome and actions due. 

03.20/21 Housing Compliance: 
Gas, Electrical, Legionella, 
Asbestos and Fire Safety 

 

The Council’s web page to include information safety in the home regarding legionnaires disease (this only 
applies to homes with communal water tank facilities and not domestic homes), preventing mould, damp and 
condensation, annual gas/other fuel servicing and asbestos. 

03.20/21 Housing Compliance: 
Gas, Electrical, Legionella, 
Asbestos and Fire Safety 

The 1,675 records on the asbestos register will be investigated. 

 

03.20/21 Housing Compliance: 
Gas, Electrical, Legionella, 
Asbestos and Fire Safety 

a) The Council will engage/discuss with the asbestos contractor with a view of obtaining the asbestos 
information for uploading to the stock condition database on a more frequent basis.   

b) The Council will investigate introducing a flag for asbestos on the housing/repairs system. 

71



 

14 
 

 

Assignment title Management actions

03.20/21 Housing Compliance: 
Gas, Electrical, Legionella, 
Asbestos and Fire Safety 

 

a) The Council will review and agree the escalation procedures based on the risk to the Council and 
statutory/regulatory requirements.  

b) The escalation procedures will then be applied according to the agreed escalation procedures.  

c) An audit trail of the escalation will be maintained. 

72



 

15 
 

 

APPENDIX B: SCOPE 
The scope below is a copy of the original document issued. 

Scope of the review 
The internal audit assignment has been scoped to provide assurance on how South Kesteven District Council  manages the following area: 

Objective of the risk under review 

To meet internal auditing standards, and to provide assurance on action taken to address management actions previously agreed by management as part 
of the Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety audit. 

When planning the audit, the following areas for consideration and limitations were agreed: 

Areas for consideration: 

As part of the approved internal audit periodic plan we will review the 16 (seven ‘High’, eight ‘Medium’ and one 'Low') management actions agreed in the 
following Internal Audit review: 

• 03.20/21 Housing Compliance: Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety 

  

Limitations to the scope of the audit assignment:  

• Detailed testing will only be carried out on and the high and medium priority management actions; 

• We will obtain a management update in relation to the low priority management action, but no detailed testing will be carried out; 

• We will not review the whole control framework of the areas listed above. Therefore, we are not providing assurance on the entire risk and control 
framework of these areas; 

• Testing will be completed, where appropriate, on a sample basis over the period since actions were implemented or controls enhanced; and 

• Our work does not provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not exist. 

 

73



 

16 
 

 

 

Debrief held:                19 February 2021 

Draft report issued:     25 February 2021 

Internal audit Contacts Robert Barnett, Head of Internal Audit 
Robert.Barnett@rsmuk.com 
07791 237658  
Amjad Ali, Senior Manager 
Amjad.Ali@rsmuk.com 
Darren Yarnold, Lead Auditor  
Darren.Yarnold@rsmuk.com 
 
  

Responses received    9 March 2021 
 

 

Final report issued       9 March 2021 
 

 

 
 Client sponsor Chris Stratford, Interim Assistant Director of Housing   

Distribution Chris Stratford, Interim Assistant Director of Housing   
Paul Crow, Interim Head of Technical Services 
Richard Wyles, Director of Finance 
Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer  

74



 

rsmuk.com 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the 
weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Actions for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact.  This report, or our work, should 
not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system 
of internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist.  Neither should our work be 
relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council and solely for the purposes set out herein. This report should not therefore be 
regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. 
Any third party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or 
expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 

This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), 
without our prior written consent. 

We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

 

 

 

75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Governance and Audit Committee 

18 March 2021 

Report of: Councillor Robert Reid 

  Cabinet Member for Housing and 
Planning 

           

 

Property Searches Update Report 

This paper sets out the statistical reporting for property searches for April 2020 to February 2021, 
showing the Council’s performance for searches and providing information and commentary on 
this area of service delivery. 

 

 

Report Author 

Jeanette Hedison, Office Manager 

 
 01476 406381 

  j.hedison@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Growth and our 

economy 

Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Jeff Upon, Interim Head of Planning 5 March 2021 

Approved by: Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive  8 March 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Planning 

10 March 2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Notes the property searches performance as referenced in the report and shown in 
Appendices 1 and 2 for the period April 2020 to February 2021. 

2. Supports the quarterly reporting of property searches performance to the 
Governance and Audit Committee during 2021/2022. 

 

77

Agenda Item 8

mailto:j.hedison@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 
1.1 At the meeting of the Committee on 4th February 2021, the Cabinet Member for Housing 

and Planning offered to provide the Governance and Audit Committee with a report 

providing data on the response times for searches completed in the preceding 9 months, 

with a quarterly report on performance to be provided during 2021/22. Members welcomed 

the offer of an update in this area.  This report provides the relevant update for the 

Committee. 

 

1.2 There are 10 months of available data in 2020/21, covering the period between 1 April 2020 

and 28 February 2021.  This data is provided in the report and provides an overview of 

performance.  The graphs in Appendices 1 and 2 show performance of the full search and 

personal search services.   

 

1.3 This report explains background to performance, providing commentary on the barriers and 

challenges experienced, as well as actions being taken to improve performance. 

 

2 Context of Data 
2.1 After going into national lockdown in March 2020, the land charges service experienced a 

significant decrease in both full search and personal search requests received.  The 

decrease in demand was largely due to solicitors and search agents being unable to transact 

property sales, alongside the challenges of implementing new processes for remote 

working. 

 

2.2 Full Searches 

2.2.1 Full searches are official searches and are a complete analysis of a property site.  This 

information is checked and verified by land charges staff.  It includes a full and complete 

planning history of the site, any applicable registrations, as well as including information 

relating to Highways, Building Control and Environmental Health, as well as any number of 

additional questions the requester may ask. 

 

2.2.2 Since August 2020 the volume of full searches received has increased significantly – from 

an average of 58.6 per month in the 6 months of April to September 2020, to an average of 

152.2 per month from October 2020 to February 2021.  An increase of approximately 260%. 

The average turnaround time at the end of February was 19 working days. 

 

2.3 Personal Searches 

2.3.1 Personal searches are a raw data extract from our systems, provided to search agents, 

who then perform their own analysis of the data.  They do not include highways or building 

control information.  The search agent then prepares their own report to the requester of 

the personal search 

 

2.3.2 Since August 2020 the volume of personal searches received has also increased 

significantly – from an average of 135 per month in the 6 months of April to September 

2020, to an average of 290 per month from October 2020 to February 2021. An increase 

of approximately 215%. 

 

 

78



 

 
 

2.4 Stamp Duty Relief 

2.4.1 The increases identified above are primarily due to the government’s temporary stamp duty 

‘holiday’ on properties purchased up to £500,000 in value, which was announced on 8 July 

2020.  It should be noted that in his budget speech on 3 March 2021, Chancellor Rishi Sunak 

announced an extension of this scheme to the end of June 2021. 

 

2.5 Turnaround Time 

2.5.1 Current turnaround time is between 19 and 20 working days, approximately 4 weeks, in line 

with Environmental Information Regulations (EIR) requirements.  At its peak in December 

2020, turnaround time reached 23 working days, approximately 4.6 weeks.  An internet 

search of other local authorities indicates a variance of turnaround times between 5 to 7 

working days up to in excess of 25 working days. 

 

2.6 Challenges 

As well as the volume of searches being elevated during the last few quarters there have 

also been other challenges for the service which can be summarised as: 

• The need to search manually for some information resulting from the limited connectivity 

between data systems.  This is being investigated further to identify opportunities for 

improvement. 

• Delays resulting from issues with site plan provision. 

• Technical issues with the personal search email account. 

• Search results getting stuck in the Total Land Charges (TLC) system, which have to be 

released by the IT team. 

 

3 Actions Taken to Date 
3.1 An agency resource was added to the team in October 2020 to process our personal 

searches, thereby allowing SKDC’s Land Charges team to focus on our full searches, as it 

is these that are influencing the increase in our average turnaround time. 

 

3.2 Weekly review meetings are held with the team to analyse progress, determine priority 

focus, and identify barriers and resolutions 

 

3.3 Changes have also been made to our processes to achieve service efficiencies, eg. 

recording of registrations, requesting Highways responses etc. 

 

3.4 Throughout 2020 to the present time, the SKDC land charges team have continued to offer 

a full service to all of our customers, despite the restrictions and challenges around Covid-

19 and working from home. 

 

4 Other Authorities’ Responses During the Covid-19 Pandemic 
4.1 In a meeting with the Local Land Charges Institute of 10 February 2021, it was reported that 

following the March 2020 lockdown ten local authorities suspended their personal search 

service.  Four have since reinstated this but 6 remain closed for personal searches, including 

one which may not be resuming this service.  A further 11 local authorities are considering 

suspending their personal search service.  In addition one authority is unable to operate any 

land charges search service due to a cyber-attack, resulting from using web links to plans 

(a process SKDC have ceased as a result). 

 

79



 

 
 

5 Financial Implications  
5.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

6 Legal and Governance Implications  

6.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.  

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

7 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
There are no issues arising from this report in regard to quality and diversity or safeguarding. 

If any issues do result from this report they will be addressed as required. 

8 Risk and Mitigation 
8.1 No significant implications have been identified.  

9 Community Safety Implications 
9.1 No significant implications have been identified. 

10 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

10.1 The contents of this report do not have a direct impact on the Council’s carbon emissions 

or the carbon emissions of the wider district. 

11 Appendices 
11.1 Appendix 1 – Incoming Searches April 2020 to February 2021 - Graph 

11.2 Appendix 2 – Average Turnaround for Searches – Graph 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

N/A 

Previously Considered by: N/A N/A 

Final Decision date   N/A 

 

  

80



 

 
 

Appendix 1 

 

 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB

INCOMING SEARCHES APRIL 2020 - FEB 2021

FULL PERSONAL

81



 

 
 

Appendix 2 

 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB

AVERAGE TURNAROUND - WORKING DAYS

82



 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 

18 March 2021 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

  Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 

           

 

2020/21 Accounting Policies and changes to the 
deadline for the publication of the Statement of 
Accounts 

The Council’s Accounting Policies are reviewed annually, prior to the preparation of the Statement 
of Accounts, to ensure that they are up to date and in line with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (The Code). 
 
In line with the Committee’s terms of reference it is a requirement that the proposed policies are 
reported prior to the production of the Statement of Accounts. 
 
 
 

 

Report Author 

Gillian Goddard, Senior Financial Accountant 

 
01476  

 g.goddard@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 5 March 2021 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 5 March 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

10 March 2021 

 

Recommendation to the decision maker 

83

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

It is recommended that Governance & Audit Committee  

• Approves the Statement of Accounting Policies, as set out at Appendix A to this 
report to be used in the production of the 2020/21 financial statements 

• Notes the proposed dates for the publication of the draft and final audited accounts.  

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 As part of its Statement of Accounts, the Council needs to disclose the accounting policies 

it has applied to all material balances and transactions. These are drawn up in line with the 

CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 (The 

Code). 

1.2 It is good practice to consider and adopt the accounting policies in advance of the production 

and approval of draft accounts and to this end all accounting policies have been reviewed 

for the 2020/21 financial year to ensure that they comply with The Code.  The 2020/21 

CIPFA Code has only minor changes compared to 2019/20, none of which are judged 

material in relation to the Council’s Statement of Accounts and so no changes have been 

made to the policies used in 2019/20.  Appendix A details the accounting policies to be 

applied in the preparation of the Statement of Accounts 2020/21.   

1.3 The Government has recently consulted on the publication date for the draft and final 

audited accounts.  It is expected that the publication date for the draft accounts will be 31 

July 2021 and the publication date for final audited accounts will be 30 September 2021. 

1.4 During the year end process there may be changes required to the policies arising from 

changes in circumstances or updated guidance.  These will be agreed with the Section 151 

Officer and reported to Governance and Audit Committee alongside the final Statement of 

Accounts. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are asked to approve the Statement of Accounting 

Policies set out in Appendix A. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 No other options are available as local authorities are required to prepare accounting 

policies for inclusion in the Statement of Accounts. 

4 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

4.1 As part of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 Local Authorities are 

required to include Accounting Policies in the Statement of Accounts. 

5 Financial Implications  

5.1 Prior to the compilation of the Statement of Accounts for 2020/21 it is important that 

members of Governance and Audit Committee have the opportunity to discuss and 

comment on the accounting policies to be used in the production of the financial statements.  

These policies if agreed, will be applied to the treatment of all transactions that make up the 

figures in the Statement of Accounts to ensure that the accounts present a true and fair view 

of the financial position of the Council at the balance sheet date and of its income and 

expenditure for the financial year. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

84



 
 

6 Legal and Governance Implications  

6.1 Local authorities are required by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to prepare a 

Statement of Accounts in accordance with relevant regulations. The policies referred to are 

a requirement of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015.  Any updates and 

amendments should be reported to Governance and Audit Committee in accordance with 

its role to approve the Statement of Accounting Policies. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

7 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

7.1 Not applicable. 

8 Risk and Mitigation 

8.1 Not applicable. 

9 Community Safety Implications  

9.1 Not applicable. 

10 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’? 

10.1 This recommendation is carbon neutral. 

11 Background Papers 

11.1 None. 

12 Appendices 

12.1 Appendix A – Statement of Accounting Policies 

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not required 

Previously Considered by Not applicable 

Final Decision date   18 March 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

85



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 
 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

I. GENERAL PRINCIPLES 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2020/21 financial 
year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2021.  The Council is required to prepare an 
annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.. These 
regulations require the Statement of Accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper 
accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 and supported by International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS).  
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial 
instruments. 
 

II. ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are 
made or received. In particular: 
 

• Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits 
or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

 

• Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure 
reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

 

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as 
inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

 

• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 
made. 
 

• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the 
relevant financial instrument, rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the 
contract. 

 

• Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where 
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to 
revenue for the income that might not be collected.  

 

• The impact of IFRS15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers has been considered and 
deemed to have no material impact. 

 
III. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without 
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments 

87



Appendix A 
 

that mature in 30 days or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that 
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. 
 

IV. CHARGES TO REVENUE FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to 
record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year. 
 

• Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service. 

• Revaluation and Impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the loss can be written 
off. 

• Amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses or amortisation.  However, it is required to make an annual contribution 
from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount 
calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory 
guidance.  Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore 
replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance by way of an adjusting transaction 
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference 
between the two. 
 

V. COUNCIL TAX AND NON-DOMESTIC RATES 
 
Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf 
of major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as, principals, collecting council tax 
and NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund 
(i.e. the Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council 
tax and NDR. Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major 
preceptors and central government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the 
amount of council tax and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted. 
 
Accounting for Council TAX and NDR 
 
The council tax and NDR included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
is the council’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the 
amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the Council’s General Fund. 
Therefore, the difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General 
Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The Balance Sheet includes the council’s share of the end of year balances in respect of 
council tax and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, 
overpayments and prepayments and appeals. 
 

VI.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
Benefits Payable during Employment 
 

88



Appendix A 
 

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. 
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, 
bonuses and non-monetary benefits for current employees.  These expenses are charged on 
an accruals basis to the relevant service line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.  
 
Termination Benefits  
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate 
an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept 
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.  They are charged on an accruals basis 
to the appropriate service, or where applicable, to the Non Distributed Costs line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Council can no 
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the council recognises costs for a 
restructuring. 
 
Post-Employment Benefits  
 
Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Fund, administered 
by Lincolnshire County Council.  The scheme provides defined benefits to members 
(retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council.   
 
The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the revenue account when 
employees earn them, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme: 
 

• The liabilities of the Lincolnshire County Council pension scheme attributable to the 
Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit 
method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to 
retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality 
rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projected earnings for current employees.  

 

• The assets of the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund attributable to the Council are 
included in the balance sheet at their fair value. 
 

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 
 

• Service Cost comprising: 
 

- Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned 
this year –  allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to 
the revenue accounts of services for which the employees worked 
 

- Past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or 
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited 
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs 
 

• Net interest on the net defined pension liability (asset) i.e. net interest expense for the 
Council – the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that 
arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and 

89



Appendix A 
 

Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
Remeasurement comprising: 
 

- The return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the defined 
benefit liability (asset) charged to the Pension Reserve as Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
 

-  Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because 
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or 
because the actuaries have updated their assumption – charged to the Pensions 
Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

 
- Contributions paid to the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund – cash paid as 

employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted 
for as an expense.   

 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners 
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.    
 
In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the 
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace 
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts 
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve 
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for 
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by 
employees. 
 
Discretionary Benefits 
 
The Council has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the 
event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any 
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for 
using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme. 
 

VII. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
Financial Liabilities  
 
Financial Liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value 
and carried at their amortised cost.  Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of 
interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was 
originally recognised.  
 
For all of the borrowing that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the 
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principle repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account is the amount payable for 
the year in the loan agreement. 
 
 
 

90



Appendix A 
 

 
 
Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that 
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow 
characteristics. There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:  
 

• amortised cost  

• fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and  

• fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 
 

The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. 
Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose 
contractual payments are not solely payment of principal and interest (ie where the cash 
flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument).  

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost  

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the 
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are 
initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. 
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are based 
on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for Statements 
the instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the Council, this means that the 
amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued 
interest) and interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan 
agreement.  

Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES 
at a marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary 
organisations, with the difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the 
Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the General 
Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial year – the reconciliation of amounts 
debited and credited to the CIES to the net gain required against the General Fund Balance 
is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement.  

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.  

Expected Credit Loss Model  

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised 
cost, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to 
lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade 
receivables (debtors) held by the Council.  

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might 
not take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a 
crucial part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument 
was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not 
increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month 
expected losses.  

91



Appendix A 
 

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit of Loss  

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the 
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are 
initially measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as 
they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.  

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques:  

 

• instruments with quoted market prices – the market price  

• other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow 
analysis.  

 

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following 
three levels:  

• Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that 
the Council can access at the measurement date.  

• Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.  

• Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset.  
 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement.  
 

VIII. GOVERNMENT GRANTS & OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS  
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable 
assurance that: 

• The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

• The grants or contributions will be received 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contributions have been 
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 
potentially embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be 
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must 
be returned to the transferor. 
 
Money advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are 
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or 
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and 
contributions) or Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income (non ring-fenced revenue grants 
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

IX. HERITAGE ASSETS 
 
Heritage assets are held or maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and 
culture.   They are initially recognised at cost if this is available.   If cost is not available, values 
are only included in the Balance Sheet where the cost of obtaining valuation is not 
disproportionate to the benefit derived.  For most of the Council’s heritage assets, insurance 
valuations are used.  Where no market exists or the asset is deemed to be unique, and it is 

92



Appendix A 
 

not practicable to obtain a valuation, the asset is not recognised in the Balance Sheet but 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts. 
 
Heritage assets are depreciated over their useful life if this can be established.  If an asset is 
considered to have an indefinite life, no depreciation is charged.  Disposals, revaluation gains 
and losses and impairments of heritage assets are dealt with in accordance with the Council’s 
policies relating to property, plant and equipment.   
 
The cost of maintenance and repair of heritage assets is written off in the year incurred. 
 

X. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable 
and controlled by the Council (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that 
future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Council.  
 
Expenditure on the development of the Council’s website is not capitalised.   
 
Intangible Assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair 
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. 
In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore 
carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its 
useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset 
might be impaired – any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gains or losses arising on the 
disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure 
Line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an 
impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital 
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts 
Reserve. 
 
The useful life of intangible assets is assessed by the Chief Finance Officer at the time of 
acquisition.  Intangible assets are derecognised when no future economic benefits are 
expected from them. 
 

XI. INTERESTS IN COMPANIES AND OTHER ENTITIES 
 
The Council has a material interest in LeisureSK, Invest SK and Environment SK.  The nature 
of these relationships has been assessed and they are deemed to be subsidiaries.  The 
Council is not currently required to produce group accounts on the grounds of materiality.  In 
respect of Gravitas the Council produces Group Accounts. 
 

XII. INVENTORIES AND LONG TERM CONTRACTS 
 
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  
 
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the 
provision of services with the value of works and services received under the contract during 
the financial year.   

XIII. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

93



Appendix A 
 

 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. The definition is not met if property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of 
services or production of goods or is held for sale. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the 
price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. As a non-financial asset investment properties are 
measured at highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually 
according to market conditions at the year end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.  
 
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, 
revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have 
an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of 
the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital 
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts 
Reserve. 

 
XIV. LEASES 

 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the 
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 
separately for classification. 
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset 
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement 
is dependent on the use of specific assets 
 
The Council as Lessee 
 
Finance Leases: 
 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet 
at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the leases inception (or the 
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by 
a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor e.g. payments net of financing costs. Initial direct 
costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry 
into the lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as 
expenses in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
Lease payments are apportioned between: 

• A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to 
write down the lease liability, and 

• A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

 
Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the 
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease 

94



Appendix A 
 

term if this is shorter than the assets estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does 
not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period). 
 
Operating Leases 
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased 
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight line basis over the life of the 
lease, even if this does not match the patterns of payments (e.g. there is a rent free period at 
the commencement of the lease). 
 
The Council as Lessor 
 
Finance Leases 
 
Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, 
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal and replaced by a long-
term debtor in the Balance Sheet valued on the future income due under the finance lease.  
 
Operating Leases 
 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, 
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made 
on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of 
payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease).  
 

XV. OVERHEADS AND SUPPORT SERVICES  
 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance 
with the Council’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance.  
 

XVI. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods 
and services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be 
used during more than one financial year are classified as Property Plant and Equipment.  
 
Recognition:  
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits 
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council, over more than one year 
and that the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does 
not add to an assets potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. 
repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.   
 
The Council has a de-minimis of £10,000 for capital expenditure, with the exception of the 
purchase of motor vehicles.  Where the total cost of an asset is higher than £10,000 but only 
part of the expenditure has occurred within a financial year that expenditure would be included 
in the balance sheet even if it was below the de minimis level.  
 
Measurement 
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 

95



Appendix A 
 

 

• the purchase price 

• any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management 

 
The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred while assets are under construction. 
 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash 
flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost 
of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council. 
 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

• Dwellings – current value determined using the basis of existing use value for social 
housing (EUV-SH).  The social housing discount applied in 2020/21 is 42%. 

• Community assets and assets under construction –  historic cost.  

• Plant, Vehicles & Equipment – depreciated historical cost 

• All other classes of assets – current value, unless there is no market-based evidence of 
fair value because of the specialist nature of the asset.  In this case fair value is estimated 
using the Depreciated Replacement Cost method. 

 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re-valued where there have been 
material changes in the value, but as a minimum every five years.  Valuations of property 
assets are carried out by the District Valuer, an external, qualified valuer, who is independent 
of the Council. The method of valuations is as recommended by CIPFA and in accordance 
with the principles and guidance notes issued by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.   
Operational assets constructed or acquired during the year will be re-valued on 31 March of 
the following year.   
 
Increases as a result of revaluations are debited to the appropriate asset account, with the 
opposite entry going to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains, except to the 
extent where it reverses a previous revaluation loss that was charged to a service revenue 
account within the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement.  In this case the 
revaluation gain will first be used to offset the previous loss and any further gain is then taken 
to the Revaluation Reserve.  Revaluation gains charged to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of 
Services are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account and reported in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 
 
Decreases as a result of revaluation, which are not specific to one asset but affect several, 
are revaluation losses as opposed to impairments.  The decrease is recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve up to the balance in respect of each asset affected and then in Surplus 
or Deficit on Provision of Services.   Any such charge taken to Surplus or Deficit on Provision 
of Services is then transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account and reported in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the 
date of its formal implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into 
the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Impairment 
 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may 
be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be 

96



Appendix A 
 

material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the 
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 

• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, 
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of 
the accumulated gains) 

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,  

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of 
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not 
been recognised. 
 
Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets 
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and 
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 
 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
 

• Land is not depreciated as it will not have a finite life. 
 

• Council Dwellings and Other Buildings are depreciated using the straight line method. The 
finite useful life is assessed by the District Valuer at the time of revaluation but for Council 
Dwellings is usually 50 years, and for other buildings is between 1 and 60 years. 

 

• Plant and Equipment are also depreciated by the straight line method. Useful life is 
assessed by the Chief Finance Officer at the time of acquisition, usually between 3 and 10 
years.  Some assets have a longer life span, up to 30 years.   

 

• Vehicles are depreciated using the reducing balance method at a rate of 25% per annum. 
 

• Non-current assets held-for sale are not depreciated. 
 

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated with an amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been 
chargeable based on their historic cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.  
 
Componentisation 
 
Only assets with a carrying amount more than or equal to £500,000 at the beginning of the 
financial year are considered for componentisation.  To be recognised as a component the 
value of the part of the asset being considered must be more than or equal to 10% of the value 
of the asset, and have a life less than or equal to half that of the main asset.  When a 

97



Appendix A 
 

component is replaced, the carrying amount of the old component is derecognised and the 
new component is recognised. If the carrying amount of the old component is not known, this 
is estimated by indexing back from the cost of the new component and adjusting for 
depreciation and impairment over the old component’s useful life.  The Building Costs Index 
will be used. 
 
The depreciation calculated is charged to the service revenue accounts, central support 
service accounts and trading accounts.  
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been 
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale 
  
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is classified as an Asset 
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at 
the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease 
to a fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted in the Other Operating Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement. Gains in fair value are recognised 
only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision 
of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are 
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before 
they were classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations 
that would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their 
recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell. 
 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale. 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the 
Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off 
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited 
to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of 
disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Amounts for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A proportion 
of receipts related to housing disposals is payable to the Government. The balance of receipts 
remains within the Capital Receipts Reserve and can then only be used for new capital 
investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the capital 
financing requirement).  
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  
 
 
 
 

98



Appendix A 
 

XVII. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
Provisions  
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or 
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or 
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and are 
measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle 
the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance 
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year - where it 
becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a 
lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the 
relevant service. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered 
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the 
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the obligation is 
settled. 
 
The council has made a provision for settling the self-insured element of Public Liability 
insurance claims. 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts. 
 
Contingent Assets 
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service 
potential. 
 

XVIII. RESERVES 
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a 
reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the 

99



Appendix A 
 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. The reserve is then transferred back into the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the 
expenditure.   
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes e.g. for non-current assets, 
retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council – 
these reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 
 
 

XIX. REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE 
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but 
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the 
relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.   Where 
the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources 
or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund 
Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that 
there is no impact on the level of council tax. 
 

XX. VAT  
 

VAT is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s 
Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income. 
 

XXI. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
 
The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment 
properties at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to 
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell 
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability. 

 
The council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest. 
 
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the council takes into account a market 
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best 
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and 
best use. 
 

100


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2021
	4 Updates from previous meeting
	5 Internal Audit Plan 2021/22
	6 Internal Audit Progress Report
	7 Housing Compliance: Gas, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety - Update
	8 Local Authority Search Figures Update
	9 Statement of Accounting Policies
	Appendix A - Accounting Policies




